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Leadership. A long long run.

It's niot 3 hundred-meter, rather a masathon, S0 not only stand of run strong. you 3k
have to bulld strong, for years. We are the export [eader of Sangladesh cement
industry for some reasons. Hope et it will bulld your confidence &5 well You too,
come tobulld your wision,
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Transmittal Letter

20 November 2014

The Yalued Sharehelcers

Barpladess Securities and Exchange Commissian
Regstrar of |oint Stack Companies & Frms
Dhaka Stock Excharge Lid.

Chittagomg Stock Exchange Ltd

Sub: Annual Report for the year ended 30 june 2014

Diear Sirs)

We are pleased toenclose the notice of 20th Annual Ceneral meeting, 2 copy of the
Anrisal Report together with the Audited Fnancal Statemerts including
Statement of Enanclal Position as at 30 june 2014, Statement of Comprehensive
Ircome, Staternent of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year

ended 30 june 2014 along with notes thereon of ML Cemeant Factony Ltd, far vous
kirsdd infarmetion & records

Trarking vou,

Yours falthfully,
‘:i}; .

{Md. Mazharul Islam, FCS)
(ompany Secratary
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Brief History

M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. is a public limited company and one of the leading

manufacturers of cement in Bangladesh. On December 37, 1994 it started its journey
with the commitment for providing high gquality cement to the country. Its brand "Crown
Cement” has own renown both at home and abroad,

Initially the plant was installed with a capacity of producing 600tpd (ton per day) of Portland
cement. With the passing of time the demand of Crown Cement increased day by day.
Therefore the sponsors expanded the project thrice, By dint of quality Crown Cement soon
gained acceptability bath at home and abroad which raised the necessity for expanding the
plant from initial 600tpd {ton per day), BOOtpd 2nd unit in 2002, 1400tpd 3rd unit in 2006 and
3000tpd 4th unit in 2011 thereby raising the total production capacity to 5800tpd i.e. 1.740
million metric ton peranmum.

The company hasbeen listed in Dhaka Stock Exchange and Chittagong Stock Exchange in 2011, Its
high growth agenda have been highly appreciated by the shareholders, and have won investors
trust, Its backward and forward integration endeavors have given new dimensions to its growth
platform. With this end in view, the associate industrial units’ viz., Crown Polymer Bagging Ltd., Crown
Power Generation Ltd., Crown Mariners Ltd., Crown Transportation & Logistics Ltd, Crown Cement
Concrete & Building Products Ltd. have been set up and are already in operation. The company has also
acquired a handy max size ocean going ship to facilitate transportation of 2w materials fram abroad. It
is hopefully expected that these new growth platforms will facilitate creation of new dimensions and
frontiers to the mother company M. | Cement Factory Limited.

Crown Cement pioneered in export of cement in 2003 and paved the way for earning hard-earned foreign
currency. Recently Crown Cement Achieved the National Export Traphy (Gold) twice for attaining the top
mast place among the cement exporters in Bangladesh, oo

The factory possesses well communications facility both through water and road. It is located at West = i

Mukterpur, Munshigon] on the bank of the river Bhaleswari, It is connected by a metallic road (Dhaka-Munshigon] ==
Highway) linked with the whaole country.
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Notice of the 20th
Annual General Meeting

Maotice & hereby given that the 20th Annual Ceneral Meating {ALM) of M. | Cement Factary Limited will be held on Wednescay, the
24th December 2014 at 11:00 AM. at the Factory Premises, West Mukterpur, Munshigan 1o transact the follewing Dusiness:

AGENDA:

1. Torecaive and adept the Audited Financial Statements of the Companiy for the year ended 30 june 2014, together with the
Reports of the Auditors and the Directors thereon

2. Todeclae the Dividerd for the vear enced 30 June 2014

3. Toebect Directors in-terms of therelevant provisians of the Artickes of Associaton of the Compary:

4. Toappont Auditors for the vear 20142015 and to fix thelr remuneration.

By Crder of the Beard
W7
Diated: Dhaka YA/

20 Newember 2014 o
(Md. Mazharul Islam, FC5)
Company Secretary

A

I. The members, whose names appeared in the Compary's Regster or in the Depository Register on the Record Oate ie 13
Nowember 2014, shall be efigible toattend the Annual Genersl Meeting and to receive the Dividend

2. A member wishing to apoaint a prosy must denosit the Prowy Fosm, duly stamped at the Company's Head Office, House 1 & 7,
Road # 55, Dulshan - 2, Ohaka- 1272 not later than 48 hours before the time fised for the Mesting,

3. Admission into the meeting will be &Sowed on production of the Attendance Slip sent with the notice and verification of
signature of the Memberis) andior Froxybalder(s)

M. I. Cement Factory Ltd, Annual Report 2014 ©4



Vision

vision is to make a contribution to the nation by
creating opportunities in the arena of industrial growth

and

L

development of Bangladesh, and to provide a solid

foundations far sooet iy s Tuture

Mission

s @ moderm cement company, we manufacture cement

-
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create value

the needs of
= |

3 innovative products & services that
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Values

Commitment
Sharehciders - Create sustainebée economic value for cur sharehgiders by utilizng an horest and efficient
busimess methodology.,

Community - Commitied o serve the soiety through employment creation, support commurity projects &
events, and be & responsible corporate citizen

Customers - Render service 1o ow customers by using state-of-the-art techinology, offering diversified products
and aspiring to fuifill their needs 1o the best of our abilities

Employees - Be reliant on the inherent merit of the employess and horor our refationships. Work together 1o
celefrate and rewsard the urigue backgrounds. viewpaints, skilts, 2nd talents of everyone at the work place, at
each fevel,

Accountability
We are accountable for providing quality products & excefient senvices along with meeting the strict
requirements of reguiatory standards and ethical business practices

Inspiring, Motivating & Compelling

We're ambitious and innovative. Wi get excited about cur work, We bring energy and imagination to our work in
arder 10 achieve 3 level of performence, not achieved before. We achieve a higher standard of excellence,
£verything we produce shoulkd baok fresh ani modern

Ability

e have the ability to undertake e responsibility 1o materialize cur commitment, and goals. In &F matters we
think ahead & take new initiatives. we can see things from different perspectives, we are opente change and not
bourded by how we have done thirgs in the past We can respond rapidly and adjust our mede of operation to
meet stakehoider needs and achieve our goaks,

Keep Promises
Everything we do should wark perfectly. In all matters we maintain integrity & excefience, We befieve in actions,
not in words,

Be Respectful

We resoect ow customers, shareholders B others stakeholders and want ta fulfili their needs. We are respectful
in regard toall our interactions with them, \We ahways appreciate comments & suggestions from cur stakeheiders,
We are open, helphul & fricndly. We have total commitment to customer satisfaction,

M. I. Cement Factory Ltd. Annuz! Report 2014 11



Goals

@ [Continually set the latest standarcs of medern technokogy In cur industry to setisfy the needs of Clstomers
throuph mnovative products and senvices,

® (ontribute tothe netlonal economy and the infrastructre develcpment of the country,

® Secure the strongest comeetitive position incur relevant market places through making quakity product and
aperational excellence

® Be partner with the best supplers, delivering increased value for bath the company and our oustomers,
® Berecogrized as arespected & attractive company & an emplover of first choice,

®  [Provide extensive cereer opperiunites through competitive pay & benefits, tralning & development & a
congenial working emdronment.

®  Empowe our employees at every level, and integrate them fully into our network,

® [ontinually demonstrate our coOmmitment 10 sustainable envircnmental
performance, and play a pro-active rose in Corporate Soczl Responsbility
[C5R) within our sphere of Influence,

® Achieve long-term financial performance,
& [reate secured investment oppertundty within the country.

L] Enhance versatitty, & diversification through the
penetration of new marke: segmerts,

® |mpeove acministrative & organization structues
toreview 2l business lines regularly & develop the
best practice in the ndustry,

# Earn foreign currency theaugh expart,

12 M. L Cement Factory Lid. Annual Report 2014



Milestones

Our ol is 1o identity ways to increase productivity and efficiency and 1 promote 3 sustainable
future, Mo miat ter how good we are al service, our success depends mare than amything oabeing able
tocannect with cuslomers.

In o Jourmiey e following years are the symbol of prospenty and progress:

2012 Launched commercat aperation of Crowen Cement Ready Mo with production
capacity of 42 000 oft concrete per day.
Larched cammerclal aperation of Crown Polymer Bagging Ltd.

212 Procured a mother vessel (Crown Viayager) for transpartation of raw materials
Lamched commencal operation of Crown Mariners Ltd,

2011 Laumched operation of 4th unit to double the production capacity
2011 Listed with Dnakea Stock Exchange {D5E) & Chittagong Stock Exchanae (CSE)
2010 Awarded Natianal Expart Traphy [Gaold) for the year 2008-10

2009 hwarded National Export Traaphy [Gald) for the year 2008-09
Laurched commercaal operation of Crown Power Genaratian Ltd,

2008 Launched aperation of 3rd unlt with production
capacity of 1400MT/Day

2002 Launched operation of 2nd unit with production
capacity of S00MT/Day

000 Started commercial operation with production
capacity of GOOMT/Day

1994 incorparated as & public Bmited company

M. |. Cement Factory Ltd, Annual Report 2014 13



Corporate Profile

Status Public Limited Company

incorparation of the Company 3=t December 1954

Date of Commencement A1 st December 1954

Subscription Open o Sth fanuany 2011

Subscription closed 13th]aruany 2011

Listed in Dhaka Stock Exchange 18th May 2011

Listed in Chittagong Stock Exchange Sth May 2017

Commercial Production 13th Cctober 2000

MNature of Zusiness Manufacturing and Merketing of Ordinany
Fretiand Cement and Portland Composite Cement,

Credit Rating Entity - AAZ Shart Term - 5T-2

Authorized Capital Tk 5002000000

Paid up Capital Tk 7.4BS000000

Manpower 770 Permanent, 95 Casusl

No. of Shareholders 69,614

14 M. L Cement Factory Ltd. Annual Repart 2014
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From Left Sitting: Mahammed Jabangir Alom (Chairman), Atha Md. Khabiruddin Motia (Managing Director)

Standing From Right: Praf. Or. Shaikh Shamsuddin Ahmed (independent Director), Md. Aimas Shimuf [Director],
Molio Mohommod Majnu (Adaitonal Mamaging Director), M Alamgir Kebir (Additional Managing Director),
g, Mizanur Rahmon Moila {Director), Golam Mohammad (Independent Director], Mg, Mozharul Islam, FCS [0M & Company Secretorny)
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Sponsor Shareholders

-\‘H‘

M. Mizanur Rahman Molla M. Almas Shilmul

Aihaj Md. Abdur Rouf Hd. Ahdul Ahad

M. 1. Cement Factory Ltd, Annual Report 2014 17



Lenders

(e Bani Limited

Rank Asia Lmited

[Bmiara Bank: Limited

Frimiz B Limited

Dutch Bangla Bank Limited
Mumzl Trust Bank Limited
HERD

Eastem Bae Limited
National Ban Limited
Uritad Commencial Ban | imited
Shahialad Islami Bane Limited
IFIC Rai Limited

SARINCE

Auditors

Haoda vasl Crawdhury & Co,

Chatered Acrountants, BTME Braben (@1 Flaar)
-8 ganwen Bazer commerclal Ares, Dhaka-1215

Reglstersd Otfice
‘wiest Muktampir, Mursvgan]




Advisors & Consultants

Engr, Major General Hameed Al Hasan (Retd) Engr. A Majid Chowdhiry
Addsar Comsuizant

Engr. Md. Shah Alam
lechniczl Sddsor [Mateting & Baes)

M. 1. Cement Factory Ltd, Annug’ Report 2004 19



Management Team

M. | Cement Factory Lid has a team of skiled, qualified and expenenced Engineers, Expert Marseting Team, Chemst and
Techricians under whose supension, guidance and direct participation the production activities are carried out. Behind
the screen, there is 4 promisng, hones and experienced management team to oversee and menage the whole production
& distribution network,

The spansars of the company had theéir exparience. of forty years in cement trading & manufacturing, From their
experience they have learmed that there is no alternative 1o quality, correct weirght of goods and rendering of
satisfaciony services 1o customers.

The efficient management team shides by,

1, Integrity n all their dealings,

2, Excelience in everything they do

3. Tatel commitment 1o customes's satisfaction
d, Thinkirg ahead and taking new initiatives.

Md. Mukter Hossain Talukder, FCA  Engr. Salful Alam Engr. Md. Sahidur Rahman  Engr, A.S.M, Fahim Uddin

Ewetuithie Lirecion Exprutive Drecta 5 G (Marketing & Sales) 57, G [Teehnicaly
Coeporate Faciory Opesations

Capt. Haghem Shmed Hd. Mayeen Uddin Thakur  Md, Mezhansd |5lam, FC5 Sare] Kanti Chakraborti  Engr. Subdoh Kumar Banerjes
[ (5P ) G Procueement) il B Conim sty Siscritary G HR] S DOM PE ke trical)

.

-

Shahrlar istiag Hallm, FCA Shalbal Saha Hd. Shahid UWkah ¥han Sukerit] Mukhar|es Tapas Kanti Birwas
o S DGM (M kerrg & Sl DGM el Audit) DM {Admii] 0P [Markeing & Satis-Cornerste]

M. I, Cement Factory Ltd. fnnual Report 2014
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Photagruphs of the 19th
Annual General Meeting

Fartial view of the Shereholders attended inthe | Sth AGM
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

It I5 & great honer and privilege to welcome you all te the 20th Arrual Ceneral Meeting of M1 Cement Factony Lid,
and to present the Annual Report of the Company along with the Audited Financa: Statements and Auditors Report
ihereon for the year ended 30 june 2074,

During the ywear under review, o economy has shown streng resilience by achieving 6% plus GOP growth for
coraecutive coupke of years, though ouwr Country has passed through pofitical unrest daring several moniths of e
reparting year, which has hampered the day to day normal business activitles of your compamy incleding lesser
deliveryof Cement than expected Howewer, in the competitive environment prevailing in the market, your company
ahways sTrives towands enhancing the Revenue oy satisfying the valued customers. To this effect, during the year
under review, the company has Been able o increase its Revenue by 17% compared to the last year, It may be
menticned here that to increase the Revenue, we always try 1o produce quality Cement. As a part of the quality
mainterance and make it consstent, we ane 2oing to setup one mare Packing Unit and 1,500 Metric Tan Capacity
QPC Sllo, which will help us 1o maintain the quality of ow Cement even better and thus o keep the pace of
increasing our Reverise

Tl hiznve given oo prionty towands the Health and Safety related issues and are committed o continue it for alf of
our employees. To strengthen the Health and Safety measures further, we have beer continuing to take necessary
steps theough experts,

22 M.l Cement Factory Ltd. Annual Report 2014




Your company is committed to continuousiy striving for the compliance of the Corporate Tavemance to ensure
adherence to the good Corporate Governance to safeguard the interest of the Sharsholders as well s the
Stakshalders, In this connectzn, your company bas soainted ACNABIN, Chartered Accountants, to conduct the
Corporate Covermance Compiiance sudit through verification of the comaliance of therequirements of the Guidsling
issued by the Bargladesh Securities and Exchangs Commission.

Rpart from profit making, your Company equally emphasize its obigation towands the sooety. You wousd be happy
to note that we have been continuing various activities o perform Cororate Soci: Responsibifity,

A v kg cur Cauntry i deveioping day by day and whanization is spreading rapidly, The Per Capita incorms and
sogin-econamic condition of the people of our Country are developing, accordingly choie and taste of the people
of aur Country is graduslly changing towards medern home: This will cause the increased demand of construction
meterials, one of the tomponents of which &5 Cement, Blasides, the World Bank, Asisn Developrent Bank and ofher
Foreign Donor Agencies are investing for Infrastructural Development of Bangladesh, All these will cater the
demand of Cement, Theretore, the future of the Cement Industry in Bangladesh shall continue gittering,

Firially, | would like to mention hare that our emgloyees are the main active force betid our perfomance for the
year ended 30 |une 2014, Their continued and sezmiess efforts will propel the Company towards future pinnacle of
success, On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincers apprecistion to you all, Valeed Customers,
Supiiers, Distribatons, Empkayees of the Company, National Board of Revenue and other relevant suthrities of the
Gowernment of the Penples Republic of Bangladesh: far ther support and co-opesstion | wish the Company every
succets in the future,

. '
i

Mohammed Jahangir Alam
Chatrran

M. . Cement Factory Ltd. Annual Beport 2004 23



Report of the Board of Directors

for the year ended 30 June 2014

[Uinder Section 184 of the Companies Act 1994 and Netification No. SECICHRRCD/2006-
158/134/Admin/44 dated 7 August 2012 of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission.)

Dear Valued Shareholders,

It Iz the pleasure and penitege of the Board of Cirectors 1o wekome-you 2l 1o the 20th Arnual General Meeting of
M. |, Cemertt Factory Limited and present the Directors’ Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of
the company for the year ended 30 jure 2014 for your consideration, approval and adoption.

Industry Outlook and possible future development in the Industry

Thee cement incustry of Bangiadesh has witnessed significant growth in the past two decades. The demand of
Cement, approximately 20 mékon Metric Ton is stil lower than the industry capacity of 33.20 milllen Metrdc Ton,
Barpladesh i ready to recelve the wave of much anticpated developmernt in terms of public infrastructure,
commisnization and housing faci tes. According to the Global Cement Directory 2014, the Chirese Cement Industry
conslsts of BOZ integrated cement plants with a combined praducton capacity of 1.3£ Batfyr it Is a bumning
example of what &5 In store for cement brands operating In countries with 2 genuine developmental foous.
Bangladesh fits the descriptions |ust right. Soin a way the cement industry in Bangladesh [s headed for a revolution

24 M. | Cement Factory Ltd. Annual Report 2014




inrecent sbudies, the per capita cement consumption of Bangladesh was found to be 107 KD, whichis behind Ingia's
210 K0, Paklstan's 265 K0, 50 Lanea's 310 KG, and Borea’s 570 K0 High dersities of people in clties, unplanned
urbanization 2nd rapid ecenombc development are lkely To expand cltles vertically rather than horizontaly to
achleve maximum uization of available space and toensure future food secunity by not urbanizing fertile land. To
achigve this there & no altemative t cement. A tunnel from Bir Shrestha Shaheed jahangir Gate (0 Agargaon
Rokeya Sarant s a promisieg future project, Indicating the dtles vertical expansion, in this case vertically down, The
proposed Ohaka - Ashulia Elevated Expressway 5 another example of vertical expansion apart from many flyovars
which have aready heen compieted

The trogkal chmate of Barpladesh s urfrierdly for tradithonal Asghalt Roads. Asphalt Roads here gets damaged oy
comesion from water and flood every year and cause communication difficulty, fatal road accodents and
unprecegentad repail costs. With arcund £0% ncrease In construction cost, 1t s possible to use RCC to construct
roads and increase 115 durability ty a minimum of 20vears, 'We hope that the Bangladesh Cement Industry will goa
fang way ahead

Future Mlan

In wigw of the Industry Cutlook stated above, the Board of Directors of #.1 Cement Factony Limited has decided to
set o another Packing Unit and 1,500 Metric Tor Capacity OPC Silo, which will enable us to enhance the delivery
capacity of coment. Besides, enhancemant of production capacity, Installation of new-silo for the exlsting plant s
under active conskteration of the Board of Directars, Successfulimplementation of these programs, we beliave, will
enable vour company 1o gain the market share from the prevailing competitive marke? environment,

VISION 2020

e forecast that a brand like us has 1o go beyond the boundaries of being a mere product and become an
extraovdinary (ustomer exparience of satisfaction. On fop of that, It s a sockal endity that has to keep it's
surrcunding environment, pecpbe and the naticn in mind and exist for a greater good. Hence, the Girth of Crowm
Wislen 2020, an initiative of a brand which has pioneered the Bangladeshi cement export, and til date proudly,
leading the industry- Crown Cament, Crown Vision 202065 strongly based an six plllars:

Partfolho: We aim o venture into pospestive and winning business ideas ang concepts.
Productivity: The scarce of aur grawth will be effickent productivity of our resources,

Profit: wWe exist for wealth and profit masmization of our shareholders and we intend to maintain it as we didin the
pasL

Peaple: We take care of our pecpbe Le, employees and we want 1o take pode by senng Crown Cement = “run by yod,
fun for you’.

Planet: The planat s ol home and we mist keep odr home clean and through sustainable develooment and make
it abetter place for lving for the rext generation

Partners: A winning brand like Crown Cement nesds winning parmers and we are iaoking to grow together with
our partners,

M. I. Cement Factory Ltd, Annual Report 2014 25



Rizk Factor

Thera are various risks asspolated with running of the activities of the Company, such as- Foreign Currency Risk,
Interest Rate Sk, Operational Risk, Commadity Risk, Market Risk, Quality Contral Risk etc. Tre Board of Directors
had taken adequate measwes to mnimize the prabable rsks forecasted in this industry, Althaugh, rlsks of the
indusiry are continuously evolving, the comipany has taken reasonable steps to identify material risks that may
hamper the busiress of the company and was adopted aveniive measures in this respect,

Discusslons on Cost of Goods Sold, Gross Profit Margln and Net Profit Margin

From the Statement of Comprenensive Income, you: may rotice that the Cost of Coads Sold for the year endad 30
|urs 2004 1= The 6,73 1.7 million 25 against Tk 573117 millian for the correspanding year. The ircrease inthe cost
of gooads sold in e curent year compared to the last year is manly due to current years higher sales valume
comparing to that of the last year,

At operating profit kevel, Operating Protit has beenincreased to Tk 937,10 million from T 822,47 million of the
last year reflecting the effect of increase in Gross Frofit. During the year under review the Non-cperating income
has been increased to Tk 40,98 million 25 apainst Tk, 1850 millon comparad 1o the las? year, However, Financial
Experses has stocd at Tk 6621 million 2 against the Financal Incame of Tk 7487 milllsn mainly due 1o decrease
in Fimarcial Ircome having net effect of (a) iIncreased reguirement of working capital (b encashment of FDR and (2
increase in et exchange loss.

State of Company's Affairs

The accountng year ended on 30 June 2014 was anather successul vear far your company, Your campany was
ble 10 perform better durirg the year under reference. The curment year's turnover was Tk 759064 milior: as
agalnst Tk 6.E29.70 millian of the last years, resulting 17% growth i the cusrent year compared 1o the previous
year, The Gross Profit grew by 14.60% that meant 1o a good feap from Tl 109852 mebon to Tk. 1,25892 malian,
Again, the corrent year's Net Prafis after Tax was Tk 674,39 million as against Tk 56537 moban of the last year

Export

Before 1995, Bangiadesh imparted Cement and started exporting fram 2003, The brand that ploneered export was
nore- ather than Crown Cement' the brand of M L Cernent Factory Lid T date ‘Crown Cement’ competes
internationally to maintain 45% of he cement export market of Bargladesh and significantly contribute 1o
countoy's econamy by easning forelgn curency. By taking a Bargladeshi product beyond the barders Crawn
Cemant’ = the anly brand, which has been awarded Expert Gold Trophy twice ina row for the vears 2008-2009 and
2009-2010. During the vear under review we eamd foreign exchamnge 10 the tune of about Tk S0S.49 milkan,

Information Technology (IT)

Information Techrology is playing avital role n creating custamer vahse and retention of customer satisfaction of
your compary, We are commitied to keep synchronizasion of our business pracess and new establishment with
moden upgiadad day to day technalogy.

s a part of "Vision 2020° we are planrirg 1o 2o paper less. This will bedps 1o grow green and keep environment

clean. We have introduced cur hetline {16357 to reach our *Contact Centre®, which is open 24X7, We will alsa
secure our stakeholders vabsabes data by ensuring Confidentiality, Integrity and Avalality (CA)
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To facllitate our customes's transaction transparent, we have iImplemented Global Standard "Enterprise Resource
Planning” system replcing present ERP. We have also intreduced new commuricating software “Sales Superman’,
which will Felp our customer to transact with the company from thelr business premises,

This we are transforming ourseves along with: cur stakefolders into a digital arena 1o achleve ouwr goal "Vislon
2021

Safety, Health and Environment

Your Company I committed 12 provide a safe and heatthy work environment for its stakeholders and to conduct its
business i a safe menner, Health & Safety are cove values that must be incorporated into all 2spects of our
Dusiness, We integrate healthand safety ablectives into our management systems at all levels ensuring the usages
of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE). Everyone working for the Company expects a safe and healthy waork
ervironment. The Company is accountable for the preventlon of Injurkes and cccupational Minesses. it Is also
expected that everyone will demonsirate the Heatth & Safety as the core values through visile commitment and
actwe engagement of each other,

The tssue of safety means, wie belleve the eniy acceptable number ks 2ero - 2ero fatalities, Incdents or ccoupational
Inesses, Reaching this goal is oritical for us toreach excellence,

The Company Is also committed to comply with all appreciable environmental [aws, standards & requirement and
1ask a proacthie & long term view on environmental [ssues 1o prevent poliution & improvement performance.,

Financial Results

The firancial results for the year ended 30 june 2014 15 given Delow:

Retained earrilngs - Tk 338435118
{Carried forward from previous year)
Add: Revaluation Reserve and deferred tax liabiity realized Tk 515888
Tk 340552006
Add: Met Profit for the wear Tk 574399454
Toital funds availaie for appropriation Tk1,015341.470
Froposed Dividend Cash Dividend @ 30% Tk 445500000
Unapproprated profit Tk 565841470
Dividend

The Boarc of Directors (s pleased to recommend & cash dividend of 30% Le Tk, 3.00 for each Ordinary Skare of
TE 1000 for the year endad 30 june 2014,

Contribution to the National Exchequer

During the accourting year ended 30 june 2014, the company has contributed Tk 1965838314 to the MNaticnal
Exchequer In the form of Corporate Tax, Customs Duty, MAT etc
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Election of Directors

Pursuant 1o the pronisions of the Comparies Aot 19949 and clause Mo 81 of the Articles of Association of the
Comgary one-third of the Directors shal retire by rotation in every Annual General Meeting, Accordingly, & {two]
dirsctors of the company will retire in the 20th Annual Geresal Meeting The retring dirsctars are;

1, Mohammed |ahangir Alam and

2. Alhai Md Ehabiruddis Moils

Beirg elighte they offer themselas fof reelection,

Compliance of Corporate Governance Guideline

The compliance status of the Corporate Govermanie Duideline as per the Notfication Mo, SECCMRRIDYZ006-
1581 34/Admintd dated 7 August 2012 of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission is presented
threeugh 9 (nine) rumber of annexure &t the end of the Directars Repart

Independent Directors

B per the Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 7 Aupust #4012 issued by the Bargladesh Secwrives and
Exchange Commission (B30, considering 6 (six Shareholder Cirectors i the Board, two Independent Directars
fiave been appainted, namely- Mr, Colam Mohammad, a retired comporate officials with vast experience and
Professar Or, Shalkh Shamsuddn Ahmead, Professor of Dhaka University

Auditors

The existing suditars of the compsny M/s, Hoda Vasi Chawdhury & Co, Thartersd Accountants shall retire at the
£0th Annual General Mesting. Being efgible, they have expressed their wilingress 10 be re-appointed &5 extemal
auditor for the year ending 30 June 2015 The Soard of Directors has sccepted the willngness of MYs, Hoda Vasi
Chovedhury & Co. for sppointment as extemal auditors for the year encing 30 june 2005, which is being placed in
the 20th Arnual General Meeting for sharehgders approval,

Post Balance Sheet Events

subsecient ta the Balance Sheet date, the Board of Cirsctors has recommended a Cash Diidend of 305,

PO Fund Utilization

e had pubished the final status of the PG Fund Utilization in the Annusl Repart tor the yesr ended 30 |une 2012

There is no amaount left unutilized af the [P0 =und and no detedaration of the IR0 Fund took place during the year
LEer review,
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C5R Activities

Apart from profit making, vour Company equally emphasize its obligation 1owards the society, You would b2 happy
i note that we have been continuing varlous activities to perform Corporate Soclal Responsitdfity, some of which
ae mentioned Debow:

1. Educatlon of the Blinds,

2. Merit Scholarship.

3. Wirter Clath distribution,

4 Awarding Financial Assistance 1o the mesdonous son and daugrter of our Dealers/Retailers.
5. Francial Assistance inrepaling Bridge/Cuhert etc.
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We gratefully acknowledge the vauabke help and advice that we have always recelved from our esteemad
sharehooders, not only durlrg the deliberations of the Anndal General Meeting but at other tmes as well. We greatly
value the unsticting and ready support and co-operation of aur Clierts and we assure them that It will be o
corstant endeaar 1o prove worthy of the trust they have reposed inus. To therm ard to the growing member of cur
well wishers we offer cur profound thanks.

\we- alse deeply appreciate the held and co-operation 1hat we have recelved from the varous Minlstries, the
cavernmernt of the Peopee's Repubi of Banpladesh, National Board of Reversue (NER), Board of Investment (B0
Registrar of [oint Stock Companies and Frms (RS0, Bangladesh Seourities and Exchange Commissian [BSEC),
Central Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL), Dhaxa Stock Excharge Limited (DSE), Chittagong Stock Exchange
Limited (CSE), the Company's Bangers, Insurers and Financial Institutions, Vendors, the Press and Media and ofher
Business Partners and 1t staff have always been very helpful and ther advice and guidance have made it possiblke
for us 1o nue the affairs of the Company smoathiy, We woukd like 1o express our sincere thanks for extending thelr
helpful hands

e are proud of 1he unswenving iovaity and devotion of our staff, whose drive, energy and skill have helpad the
Company 10 reach its present posisan,

On behalf of the Board
Y
%(\ “‘
Dazed, Chaka (Mohammed |ahangir Alam)
25 October 2014 Chairman
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Annexure |

Compliance of Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 7 August 2012

1, Board of Directors

1.1 Board Size
The numer of members of the Board of Directors as on 30 |une 2014 stands at S (exchading 2 Independant
Directors) which 15 within the imits ghven by BSEC

1.2 Independent Director

(1} b 1erms of the orovislon under this sub clause the Board of Directors has nominated & {twa) Indeperndent
Directors, whose appolvtment weee witimately approved In the Annual General Meeting are namedy- Mr. Golam
Mohammad and Professor Or. Shaikh Shamsuddin Abmed.

(i} Thi Indegendent Directors, nominated by the Board of Directors meet the entire requirement as prescrbed
under the sii-clause (Il of the BSEC Notification under referance

(0} I terms of provision of sub-clawse (Il) of the Kotification under reference the appointment of Independant
Directars were approved in the Annual Genesal Meeting,

(] The post of the Independent Directars was not vacant for more than 90 days
() The Board of Directors has lawd down a Code of Condact for all memiers of the Board

[ui] As per sub-clause {ul] of the Motflcation, the tenure of office of the Independent Director as nominated
above sha be 2 [three) years which may De extended for 1 {one) term ondy.

1.3 Qualifications of Independent Director {ID)

(i} The Independent Directars nominated by the Board of Directors are highly qualifled and knowledgeatie
persan, They are abe to ensure compliance with financlal reguiatory and conporate laws and can make
meaningful contribution 1o business,

(il The nominated Irdependent Directoss poses more than mindmum requirement of twehie years of corporate
management/orofessional experlerces and can make meaningful contribution towards the business of the
[ompany.

(i} Mo redaxation of qualiflcation of the Independent Directors is requred:

1.4 Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director
The position of the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director is separate individual, The roles of tea
Chaiman and the Managing Director are diearsy defined in the Articles of Assodatlon of the Company.

1.5 The Directors Report to the Shareholders
All the requiremants have been fulfilled
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2. Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of Internal Audit {HOIA) and Company Secretary {CS)
Three separate persans from different specialized discipline have been appointec. Thelr role has beendetined by
the Board. Tre CFO/CS reguiary attends the Board Meeting.

3, Audit Commitiee

Thie Audit Committee. as 3 sub-Committes of the Board has been constituted with the independent Director as
Chalrman and two other Directors. The Company Secretary acts as Secretany tothe Committee. Role of the Audit
Committee as per provision of the BSEC regulation. have been duly adopted by the Board. Therr Reports are
being submitted as per B5EC requirements.

4, ExternalfStatutory Auditors
The BSEC puidance has-been strictly followed In engaging External/Statutory Auditors

5. Subsidiary Company
There I no subshdiary company of M. | Cemant Factony Limitad.

6. Duties of the Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer
The provisions of BSEC regulaticn are being complied with on regular basis.

7. Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance
Requirements an the above are being complied with
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Annexure |l
The Directors Report on some areas as per the Condition No. 1.5 of the BSEC Guidaling

The Directors slso repart that

# Relatad Party transactons are depicted in the Note Nod0 of the Nates to the Financizi Statements.
& Remineration of the Directors has been shawn an the Note Nod | of the MNotes tothe Financial Statements

#  The Financal Statements of the company give a true and fair wiew of the Company's state of affairs, result of its
operation, cash flows and changes ineguity,

® Proper books of account as requirad by law have been kept

Appropoate accounting poficies have been followed in formulating the Snancial Statements and sccounting
estimates were reasonatle and prodent,

® The Financlal Statements wene prepared in acoordance with International Accounting Standands (ASYEangladesh
Accaunting Standasds (BASYInternational Financial Reporting Standards [IFRSVBangladesh Fnancal Reporting
Standards (BFR%) as aaplicabie in Bargladesh

The intemal contiod system & sound in design and is effectively implemented and moritored,
There |5 no significant doubt about the company's abdity To continge as a going Concei,
There js no sianificant deviaticn from the operating result of the last year

key aperating and firancial data of at least preceding five years and the current year have been presented an Page
Mo 34 8 35

& The Board met 10 {en) times durng the periad from 1 July 2013 to 30 june 2014, The Company Secretary and the
Chief Financial Officer were presant In the Board Meetings a5 foliows:

- & & @

Sl. Mo, Name of Directors Mo, of Attendance
1 Mr, Mohammed Jahangk Alam 10
2 | A Md Knhabiruddin Molla | B
3 M M Alamigic Kabir [14]
4 | MrMolla Monammad Majru | g
g 4r, Mg Almas Shimel B
6 | MrMd Mizanur Rahman Malla | 7
H4r, Giolarm Mehammad

7| (Independent Director) B
Prof, Dr. Shaikh Shamsuddin Ahmed

B | (indepentent Director) g

#* The pattern of shereholding as reguired by clause 1.5{xxi) of the BSEC's Motification dated 7 August 2012 statedin
Armagure [V,
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Annexure Il

Summiary of key operating and financial data of preceding five years and the current year

INCOME AND EXPENSES
Particulars

REVENLUIE

Eostof goods sold

GROSS PROFIT

i Admindstrative expenses

b, Sellimg & distribution expenses

Lath

Otfier oparating iIncome
DPERATING PROFIT
Financial Income {expenses)

Bther non-operating income
share of praflt from associates

Coevtribution to WPPF

NET FROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax

NET PROFIT AFTER TAX
Earnings per share (Taka)

2014
7,900,643
6731727

1,258,915

114,206

731034

345,240

23430
937,105
{66211}
40580
21,656
44,454
889,076
214685
674,383
4.54
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2013 2012
£829697 | 5657601
5731175 | 4811278

1,088,522 746,324
1z02| 89367
200078 | 145258
312090 | 235625
/OIS | 64153
822,467 574,892
74571 | 177928
18504 | 27830
9439 6255
44054 | 37174
881,087 749,771
215718 | 184010
665369 565.761

448 381

2011
402227
3254014

768,257
B0 152
152221
220403
a8.15%
606.074
95,063
13728
34035
680,785
‘244 850
435,936
323

{Taka iy 0000
2010 2009
3127352 | 2290358
2425806 | 1893230
701,546 397,128
4aIN7 | 14743

127073 | 39345
174790 | 54068
44174 | 57805
570,930 = 400,845
48483 | 103137

326 | 2563

i
531,373 | 300,371
199,255 | 112639
332,108 187,732

499 939



ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ASSETS
MOMN CURREMT ASSETS
Praperty, plant end equipments
Capital work-In-pragress
Investrrent in Associate Companies
CURRENT ASSETS
Irvestment Inshares
Inventories
Trade recenables
Current acoount with slster concerm
[ther receivables
Advances, deposits and prepayments
Advance income tas
Cash and bank balances
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharehalders’ Equity
Share capital
Deposit against share
Share prernim
Retained eamings
Revaluation reserve
Genera Reserye
LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
Long term borrowing ret off cument maturity
Ligbilities for gratuity
Deferred tax bty
Current Liabilities & Provision
Trade payanies
[ther payables
Current pertion of long term barrowings
Sheet term loan
Pronssion for 1ax fabiities
Lighilities for WRFF
Payable to PO applicants
Uneclaimid dividend
TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

2014
4,018,305
30E6836
51 468
57,655
1,271,046
119,957
B2G.526
1169446
BASAIS
57332
345,965
BZ3373
3,297 565
11,347,005

5675411
1485000
2856560
1015341

218,510

1,278,308
045,349
44,132
287,827
4,393,286
107,983

134,995

543767
3,143,055
395,050
44,454
12721
11,241
5,671,594
11,347,005

2013
4,175,045
40187 &1
97,184
15,999
5,572,353
01,831
432 7176
BBT B4
BBSAS2
108357
231078
434 8EE
2R55127
9,783,396

5,594,400
1485000
2 955560

932436
220404

1,693,689
1,451,552
13831
228,306
2,495,306
136689
£5.021
00040
1485345
240505
44,054
12866
9586
4,186,996
0,783,396

2012 20m
4,135,528 2,232,035
2770456 | 1118456

1365072 | 1113578
26,500 20,205
5,759,451 4,752,219
93454 | -
442127 | SBTR4E
753852 | 343048
513012 356,163
61234 | 304
275327 | 273873
717452 | 323817
2007053 | ZH67368

9,921,479 | 7,004,459

5,400,876 ' 5,028,494

1350000 | 1,000,000
2956560 2956560
8714819 80330
222397 2GBS63

1,969,173 606,788
1811139 | 513435

907 3895
148126 55419

2,551,430 1,369,177

148526 | 110538
47471 3BSIB
ZER076 | 7B076

1351027 | GO7E76

GEI4Bd | 554641
37174 34039
13311 | 31528
4361 | .

4,520,602 1,975,965

9,921,479 7,004,459

(Takain‘000)
2010 2009
1,147,167 814,870
10600081 814682
7069 | 188
192,129 89422
943,140 617,067
w2650 187204
NGO | 251503
agsl 30
48574 | 51521
160756 | 96,296
BOI7B| 27522

2,282,436 1,521,359

1,335,998 740,319

700000 200000
- 84456
364501 | 427525
271497
28338
64,659 | 103,745
15805 70762
2452 |
48854 | 32964
BB1,779 | 677,294
39116 93883
31038 22500
12817 | 89788
162452 | 338747
132562

316,356
|

946,438 781,040
2,282,436 | 1,521,359
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Annexure IV
Pattern of shareholding:
() ParentSubsidiany/Associated Companies and other related parbes (name wise details) Not appicabla,

(b} Cirectors, Managirg Director, Company Secretary, (hief Financlal Officer, Head of Internal Audit and
their spouses and minor children [name wise detats)

Mo. of shares

M. Mohammed Jahangir Alam Charman 23024925

ik #d. Khabiraddin Motia Maraging Director 0790000 | 10395000 | MNA
Me. Md. Alamgr Kabi Directar | 14397075 | M| NI
M. Malla Mohammad Majnu Cirectar 10,385,000 il il
. M. Almas Shiml Director | 7276500 | M@ | Nl
M. M. Mizarar Rahaman Malla Directar 10,395,000 Wil il
M. Golam Mohammad independent Director | 148 M| A
Praf. Or. Shaikh Shamsdddin Ahmed | Independent Director il Il Ml
Mr. Md. MozharulIslam, FCS CompanySecretary | N M| N
e, Shatiriar [stiag Halim, FCA Crief Financial Officer Al Ml Hil
1. M Shahid Uiah Khan Headof Intemal Audit | M I

(c) Executives [top five salxried employees other than the Cirectors. Managing Dwector, Company
sacretary, Chief Finangial Officer, Head of internal Augi):

Name No. of shares
Executhies il

i) Shareralders halding ten percant (10%) ar mare vating iterest in the Company (name wise detalls):

Name No. of shares
Mr. Mohammead |ahangh Alam 23074925
Alra] Md. Khabinaddin Mofia 20,750,000
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Annexure ¥
Resume of the appointedfre-appointed Directors
Mr. Mohammed Jahangir Alam

Mr. Mchammed |ahangir Alam |s an energetic businessman and a man of wisdom. &fter completing education from
Government Colege of Commerce, Chittagang in 1580, he started his career by [olming in-a private service

He has gathered vast expedence in frading on Iron & Steel, Cement, Bitumen, CR Coll, Zing Ingot, Agro-food, industrial
pentures atc, & has bean runring these busnesses for the last 24 years. initia%y, he established his bisiness house
namehy- |ahangir & Others in 1987 which was subsequertly Incorporated a5 [ahangir & Others Lud In 2003, Later he has
setupM | Cement Factony Ltd. and involved withestablishment of many other crganizations. He has established himzaif
a5 one of the business leaders in Bangladesn He |s the Chalrman of M. | Cement Factory Ltd, Crown Power Generatlon
Lz, Crowm Polymer Bagging Ltd, Crown Mariners Ltd, Crown Transporiation & Logistics Ltd, Managing Cirector of GPH
[spet Ltd, GPH Power GeneraticnLtd, indo Steel Re-Raolling industres Lid, [ahangs & Others Ltd, Chittagang Capital Ltd,
Directar of Preme: Cement Mills Ltd, Premier Power Gereration Ltd,, Asla Insurance Ltd. and Chartered Lite insurance Ltd
He is also actively imvalved with the following sock arganizations,

Founder Member of Indegendent Unhiersity of Bangladesh [IUB), Chittagong, Bangadesh
Advizar to Governor, Lions District 315-84, Bargladesh

Life Member of Chittzgong Maa o Shishu Hospital

Executive Committee Memier of Bangladesh Lion Foundation

Member of Bargladesh Cesman Chamber of Commerce and Industry
Execotive Director of Auto Re-Roliing and Stee| Mills Assoclation
Ceneral Secretary of Chattagram ron - Steel Utpadak and Bank Samity
Member of Bargladesh Ex-Cacet Assoclation

Life Member of Sangiadesh Mational Society for the Bling

Life Member of Bhatlary Golf & Country Club

Life Member of Gutshan Soclety

Executive Member of Cuishan jopeers Society

Mr. Mohammed Jshangir Alam Is & man of commitment which he strangly maintains In his day to day business activities
He leads a very simple ffe &5 everybody saw him,

Alhaj Md. Khabiruddin Molla

Alhal Md. khabinoddin Malla s a seascred and experienced businessman. He has been running sewersl industriahunts as
Managing Director wiz (1} M. | Cement Factoey Ltd. (€} Crown Power Generation Ltd, (2) Crown Mariners Ltd, {4} Crown
Potymer Bageing Ltd, (5 Molla Sait {Triple Sefined) Industries Ltd, He was actively Invcived with Import & tading of
Cement for the fast SO years. Mr. Molia with active suppert of the other Directors and shareholders, who are his close
relatives, have expanded the trading actadties of the group and deals with varicus commoditles such as lodized Salt, Rod,
C. £ Sheet and Steel Structural. Supported by a big warehouse at Pag'z, Marayangan|, thay have set up a oig ret-wiork of
wholezale and retall outlets at various points of Chaka and Chittagong, He s a resourceful member of the group
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Annexure VI

Report of the Audit Committee to the Board for the year ended 30 june 2014

As per Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Notification No,
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 on Corporate Governance dated 7 August 2012,

The Audit Comrmittes of the Board was duly constituted by the Seard of Directors of the Company n zcoordsnce with the
ahove noted Matification of the Bangladesh Serurtizs and EBechange Commission

The ohjectives of the Audit Commities are to assist the Bodrd of Directors in the fodowing areas

- Establishing 3 cuture of adequate intermal contral system ta ersure that sufficent risk management system s in
place to manage the compsny that fimancial reports disclosed by the company are refiable for its users.

- Ensuring true and far presentation of the financial statements in compliance with Bangladesh Accounting
Standards! Fangladesh Fnancial Reporting Standards and applicable regulatony requirements,

- Reviewing the internal audit procedure of the company and to emsure that the intermal audt can continue their
activities without any imitations, To review the effidency and effectiveness of internal audit and to review
whether the management is.complying with recommzndations made by the intermal audit departrnent

- Recommendng appointment of external auditce, review audit weork and regarts submitted by extemnal auditors and
toensure compliance and reégularization of recommendations made by the extermal auditars

- Reparting to the Bosrd of Directors on mistakes, fraud and forgenes ang other ireguianties to ensure compdiance
ared regularization,

- Ensuring compliance with all applicable legal and regulatory rules and reguiations ani the directives made by the
Buoard of Directors,

In pursiance of its abjectives, the Audit Committes of the Board held 4% meetings during the vear ended 30 june 2014,
The Committes reviewed compliance of palicy issues, regulations and applicabla laws in general and reports submitted by
the internal audit departmeant a3 wall asreports submitted fy the extermal auditors.

During the year under review, the Audit Committes emphasized on the folkowing:

- Toassess the internal 2udit procedure followed by the comgany.

- Toseeetfectiveness of introducing risk based internal audit manual,
Ta review the manthly, quarterly, hat-yeaty and year-end financal statements
To revieny the reports submitted by the internal audit department, the Audit Committss instructed and provided
suggestions fguidelines fo improve the state of operation

Qg

{Golam Mohammad)

{hairman
Audit Committee
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Annexure VI

Managing Director (MD) and Chief Financial Officer’s (CF0) Statement of Responsibilities
(In e with the Bargladesh Securites Bxchange Commission (H5EC) notification dated Augpust OF, 2012}

The preparation and presentation of financal statements atcurstely and appropriately is the responsitiity of the
management and accondinghy we certify that,

1. e havereviewed the firancial statements for the ves ended June 30,2014 and based on owr best of inowledge,
belief and information availzble, these statements, do mat contan any materialy untrue statement or amit any
material fact or do not contain statements that might be misleading,

£ These statements together present, in all material respects, 2 true and fair view of company's affairs and are in
compliance with the existing acCounting standards andfor zoplicable lews regulstions, The financial statements
were prepared in accordsnoe with the Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS) and comply with the
Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchangs Rules 1597 and other spolicable laws and regulations,

3 \Wehave reviewed director's report and other reports &5 included in Annual Regort 2074 for ensuring acouracy and
appropriateness. Howeyer, the director’s report and other reports include updated information that was available tll
the publication of Annual Report 2014;

4. Tothe best of our knowledge and belfief, no transactions entes into by the company during the financial yesr are
fraudulert, illegal or viclating business ethics and codes of conduct that is ensured by the established efficient and
effective internal controd system of company through internal suditors and the sudit committes, which requires a
high degree of judgments,

5. We affirm that we have not denied any personal access to the audit committee of the company (in respect of
matters inwolving alleged misconduct) and we have provided protection to whistle Howers from unfair termination
and other unfai or prejudicial empleyment practices; and

B e further declare that all Board Memiers and sereor manageria: personne] have affirmed compliance with the codes
of conduct for the cument year,

% B -
X > e
{Shahriar Istiag Halim, FCA) {Alhaj Md. Khabiruddin Molla)

Crief Financiz Officer Maraging Director
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Annexure VIl

ACNABIN

Lluertired Az cmestiind

L Bk L evet-15:% 14 |-'i.'_.:|'l:-l'l. {8 0 B4 4T i 52
13 Ksmeran Byzar Commmprcinl A (N8 0T HEEMIE u 29
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Well | waww i ot

Certificate on Compliance of Corporate Governance Guidelines
[Essieed under condition #7001} of Corporate Goversance Guidelines of BSEC vidk
Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD 2006~ 1580 1 34 Admin 4 dated 07 August 2012]

I hawe reviewed e compliance of conditions of the Corporate Govermance Guidalnes by M.[
Cement Factary Limited ("the Company™) for B year ended 30 June 3014. These conditions: of
Corporate Govermanos were issued by Bangladesh Securities & Bxchange Commission (BSEC)
wiges thelr notification no, SEC/CMRRCDYI006- 158/134 Admir/44 dated 07 August 2012, The
compliance with the said conditions of Corporate Governance and repoerting the status thereof
I5 the resporsihiity of the management of the Company, My responsibility is to provide a
certificate 2bout whether the Company is in compliance with the sald conditions of Corporate
Governance basad dn my exdminaticon

My examination for the purpose of issulng this certificabe was lmiled o the procedures
including implementation thereof-as adopted by the Compary for ensuring the compliance of
the cenditions of Corporate Governance and correct réporting of the status of the compliance
on the attached statement on the basis of evidence gathered and representation receved. [tis
niithar an audit nor an expressian of opinion on the financal statements of the Company,

Ta the kest of my information and according to the explanations given to me by the Company,

! Rereby certify that M), Cement Factary Limited has complied with the conditions of Carporate
Lovernanc: stipulated in the above mentioned BSEC'S notification dated 07 August 2013,

dep.

Dhaka, M. Monlruzzaman, FCA
26 November 2014 Partrer
ACNABIN, Chartered Accountants

TCAR Enrallment & TH7

e
SAKER TILLY
INFERNATIOMNAL
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Annexure IX

Report on compliance of Corporate Governance Guideline of BSEC (Condition Nuo. 7)

Status of Compllance with the conditions imposed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission's Motification Mo, SECTMRRCDVZ006-15B/Adminddd dated 7th August 2012 issued Linder
section 200 of he Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1965 & presented el

Comipliance Status
Condition Title (" has been put
No. in the apprapriate | pamarks.
columnl | (if any)
1 Hlﬂ
temnﬂed._mm”

1 |Board of Directors (BoD)

1.1 |Beard size (number of Board members - minimum 5 and i
..o
1.2 |Independent Diractors
1200 |Atleast one fifth (S} of the total numberof Dinectors shall o
... |beindepencentDirectors
1.2(ii) |Independent Director means a Director;
1.20)(a) |who either does not fold any share-in the companiy or holds
less than one percent (1%} shares of the tota paid-up|
shares of the company
120 [who is net.a sponsor of the company and & not connected
with the company's any sponsar of director of sharehokder
who holds one percent (1%) or more shares of the total 4
paid-up shares of the company on the Dasis of family
refationship. Histher famity members also shoufd nat hold
above mentionsd shares in the comoary
V2 |who does not have any other relationship, whether
pecumiary of ctherwise, with the company o fts] ]
mbﬂﬁaﬂr@ssn{iateﬂmr@anles _
1.20id) |whao is not a2 member, director or afficer of any stock J
exhange
1.2(Hile) |who is not & shareholder, director or officer of any member J
of stock exchangs o an intermediary of the capital market
120 |whois not & pariner o exacutive o was nof 3 partner o an
executive during the preceding 3 (three) years of the| +f
pompary's statutory audit firm
12K |who shall not be an independent director in more than 3 ),
(three) listed companies
1.2y |who has not een convicted by a cowt of competent
jpurrsdiction as a defautter in paymen: of any loan to.a bark or [
a Mon-Barx Financial Institution (NEF)
T200000 |who has not been convicted for a criminal offerce icmﬁ.r.-ng'
| |monlpice sy
1.20)  [Independent Directons) shall be appointed by BeD and
approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting|
(AGM)
1206 | The past of independent direcions) cansal remsn vacanl
for more thar 540 [nirety) days

1.2} |The Board shall lay down & code of conduct of all Board
memters and annual compliance of the code 10 be recorded

Mt
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120 | The tenure of office of an indeperident director shall be for
a perlod of 3 {three) years, which may be extended for 1|
{one) term only
1.3  |Qualification of Independent Director (ID}
13 |Ingependent director shall be 2 kmowledpeable individual
with integrity wiho is able fo ensure complisnce with &
financial, regulatony and corporate laws and can make
|meaningful contribution 1o business
130) |iependent  Director  shoud  be  a  Business
LeaderCarporate  deader/Bursaucrat/University  Teacher
with  Economics  of  Buginess  Studies or  Law
backgroundProfessionals like Chartered focountants, Cost|
B Management Accountants, Chartered Secretaries, The
indenentent director must have at least 12 (twelve) years
of carporate management/professional expeniences
130l |In special cases e above gualficatons may be relaxed MR
~ |suJbject to prior approval of Commission
14 [The Chairman of the Bosrd ard the Chisf Executive Officer
(CEQY shall be different individuals. The Chairman shall be
elected from amang the dirgctors. The Board of Diectors| o
shal chearly define respective roles and responsibilitizs of
the Chairman ang the LED
1.5 |The Director’s Report shall include the following additional statements:
150 |Industry outlook and possible future develogments in the N
|industry
15l _|Segment-uise o araduct-vise performence v
15{uf:| Risis and concems -
LAl | A discussion an Cost of Goods sold, Gross Frofit Margin and J I-!v-{sil i
M1 Profit Margin
nilre frareidl
Satemenls
1) | Discussion on cantinuity of any Extra-Ordinary gain or nss i
1.60)  |Basis for related party fransactions - 3 statement of i relsted J
|ty trmsaftr;ms should be disclosed in thear'rual Ireport
1508 |Lniization of proceeds from public issues, rghts sues B
andior thraugh any thar ins furmsn
150w} | An explanation if the financial results deterorate after the WA
company goes for Mone Initlal Public Offering (IPD)
150K [If sgnificant varlance ocours: between Quartery Financlal
performance and Anmwal Foendal  Statements, the i
management shall explain about the varlance
1.5(x)  |Remuneration to directors including independent directors +f
150d) |The financiz’ statements present falrly its state of affalrs,
the result of its operations, cash flows and charges in|  +
|ty
15w P‘cll:rEr boaks of account have been maintained <
5{mu] M&matlup n*aps:murlate acmuntlng 1:IIJ|IEIE'$ &e;tlma'tes A
1 5[)d'|'] IASJ'BHS.*FHSEFR&&S apﬁacahle in Elanﬁad:esh have been |
followed and adequate dischksure for any departure v
150  |The system of Intemal control 5 soursd In ceslgn and has J
been affectively Implementad and monitored
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| 15x) | Going Concern (ability 1o continue as going concerm). =
1. 5LI'.I'I:I I-thllght and &up’.arn mgnmcant deviations from the last 3
year's aperating results

TSP | Key cperating and financial Data of at least precening Giive)| 4
| years shall be summarized e,

" 15xix) | Reason for non-declaration of Dividend TN

1500 | The number of Board mestings held during the year and;-
| attendance by sach directar ¥

15=x) | Pattern of shareholding and name wise details :dmuslng ageregate number of
-snam]

| 15{xelia) | Parent/Subsidiary/Associated Companies and other related | J
parties

1.5{xxil{3) | Directaors, Chiet Executase Officer {CE0). Company Secreta:y-
(C5]. Thief Financlal Officer (CFC). Head of Intemal .»’udlt +/
[HCEAY 2rd thelr spouses and minor childrer

T.5poiNc) | Executhies | «
1.500dle) | Shareholders. Fokding ten parcent [108) or more wuﬂng* J
interask in the company
157 | In case of the appolntment/re-appointment of a director, disclose:
15{xxill(a) | a brief resume of the director | «
1.5 [xxif(3)  nature of his/er expertise in specific functional areas | =

1.5 [exilic) | names of companics in which the person also heid el
directorship and the membership of committees of the]
board

£  Chief Financial nmm. Head of mtemil Audit an:rman;r y Secretary

21 | Appointment of CFO, HOWA and C5 and defining their|
respective roles, responsibilities & duties

2

<

22 TreCFOang the C5shallattend the meeting of the Eﬁ:ar:l::f
[irectars |

3 Audit Committes

3 | The Audit Committes shall be the sub-cammittee of the BeD|  +

il | The Audit Commiztee shall assist the Boll in ensirng that
the firancial statements reflect true and fair view of he! by
state of affalrs of the company &d In ensuring a good:
maonitanng systemwithin the business

3| Tre Audit Committee shall be responsible to the BoD The
duties of the Audit Committee sval be dearly set forthin|
witing

21 | Constitution of the Audit Committee

A0F  (The Auait Committze shatl be composed of at least 3 \
AW | Tre BoD shall zozoint members of the Audit Committes wiha |
chall be directers of the company and shall inchsde atleast 1] 4
[one) Indeg:endent Dn'ecmr

330} [AI memoers of the aud't committee should be 'flrlar'r:lall_u”
literate” and at least 1 (one) member shall have accounting!
o refated financial menagement experience

3.7{iv] |Expiration of the term of service of Audit Committee;
rriembers making the number lower than 3 {three] amd fi2 u ﬁ
the I.racanrytlesrhl; the Board not later than 1 {one) mant
from the date of vacancyfies)

WA
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310 [The Company Secretary shall act a5 the secretary of the|
Audit Commitiee
A1) |The guorum:of the Audit Committee meeting shall not
constitute without at least 1 (one] indegendent director A
3.2 |Chalrman of the Audit Committee
320 |The BaD shall select the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
_|whashaf be an Independent Director
2200 Charman of the audit committee shall remain present in the
ACM
33  |Role of Audit Committee
33)  [Overseethe finarcial reporting process v
3300 Hmlturc*ﬂmen‘facmmtmg palicies and pfmples -
3.3{if) | Manitor Internal Control Risk ! YOCESS o
3.3 Oversee rnmg and [:-E!"Df{!'rar‘l.l:i! of extermi algditarns ~
330)  [Review the srnual financial statements before submission N
1o the boasd for approval
330 |Review the quarterly and half yearty financal statements J
before submisshon to the board for approval
EIEItuw] ¥ HE‘-'|E‘|'|' rhpﬂadﬁguan:ynfhternal aw:ﬁtfuttmn wJ
33(uil) |Review statement of significant relzted party transactions J
submitted by the managemeant
33k |Review Management Lettersfietter of Intemal Contwal N
w&atrues& Pss:.ﬂdhi]!r statutony audlturs
330 |Disclosure 1o the  Audit {'rmm:llpe about  the
usesfapptications of PO funds by major categany [capital
expenditure, sales and marketing expenses, working rapital,
BlC). on @ guarlery basis, es & part af their quartery i
dec lration-af fnancial results, Further, an an anral basis,
shall prepare a Slatement af funds utilized far the purposss
—— ﬂtrﬂ I:I‘m ke stated in IhE prospec fus
. ;'::.ﬂ{i Hepnrthgaftne Audit Committee
341 Hepurthgtathe Board of Directors
34,16 |Reporting toBoD on the actiities of the Audit Commities 4
34.1(iif |Reporting toHol on conflicts of Interests 4
4 1(i{ |Reportivg to Bol on any fraud o iregulsrity or material J
defect in the internal contred system
3A7{iiEn) |Reporting toBol on suspected infringement of lws 4
3:41(iiid) |Reporting to Bod dn any other mater -
34¢  |Reporting to BSEC (f any material impact on the financial
condition & results of aperation, unreasonzbly ignored by | A
the managemant)

35 [Reporting to the Shareholders of Audit Committee
activities, which shall be signed oy the Chaiman and|
disclesed in the Annual Regort

4 [External/Statutory Auditors

411 |Mon-engagement N appraisal of vauation Services of
fairmess oomigns

4(f]  |MNon-engagement In designing and implementation of
Firarial Information Systam




i} [Non-engagement n Sook Keeping or other senvices related |

!to the accounting recards oF financal statements N
divl | Non-emgagement in Broser-daaler senices a
Ayl Non-ergagemeant in aciuanial sericss A
.f1{'g'I] mmﬂ'ugagement in mtennal audlt seTvies &
djvi] |Non-engagement In @y other services that the Audit! J
iCommittee detesmines
4wl o partrer o employees of the external audt firms shadl
| possess any share of the company during the temre of tm.r =)
assignment
&isi} ;Z."u;c'rt.tertiﬁ:aﬁnn services on compliance of corporate; J
| gevemance as required under clause il of condition Ne: 7|

5 Subsidiary Company

EU] P‘rwsmr's {flaﬂng 1o the IIITFIFI{.‘-SHJ':IH of the BoD of me
‘holding company shall be made applicable 1o the A
i compasition of the Bel of the subsidiary company

SM) (AL least T{one) Independent Directar on the Boll of the|
| holding company shall be a drector on the BoD of the; /A
. |subsidiary company
e (1] ThE minutes of the Boarc m&etlr!g of the subsldlargl
i company shat be placed for review at the following Etlard.- A
{meeting of the holding company

Sfivi | The minutes of the respective Snard Meeting of the huldir'gi
scompany shall state that they have reviewed the affairs of| BIA
the subsidiary company also

S} | The Audit committee of the holding corgany sha alm
ireview the  finarcial statements, in particular the! N/A
(Investments made by the subsiciary company

&  Duties of Chief Executive Officer (CED) and Chief Financial ufﬂ:ert&"n}

&) ;The CEQ ared CFO shall certify to the Board that they hawe |
{reviewed financlal statements fior the year and that to the!  +/
' hest of their knowledge and bedef

Gljfa) | These statements do not contein amy materisky untrue |
|statement o omit any material fact oF contain statements 4/
| that might be misleading

BlJE | These statements topether present a true and fair view of |
i the compary's affars and are In compllance with existing]
raccounting standards and applicable ws

6] |There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no
transsctions entered ira by the comparsy during the year "
which are fraudulent, llegal or viclstion of the company's
code of conduct

7 Ihpnrthlind Compliance of Corporate Governance
) Et:ntmmg certificate from a Dfactltll'lﬁ Professional
Accountant/Secretary regarding compliance of conditions J
of Corporate Governance Guidelines of the B5EC and include
ir the Anmual Report

7] |Directars statement in the directors’ report whether the J
DR s cmplies o these conchtions |
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Prestigious Projects

Built with Crown Cement

Jatrabarl-Gulistan Flyover
Dhaka

Hatirjhee! Project

ﬁ‘ . ' . Dhaka
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International Projects

Built with Crown Cement

Mazrul Kalakhetra
Agartala, India

TR iy e

‘sEsaa @l P i
CCEREEEEEE 06 -II'“‘I

State Assebly House,

Tripura, India : i TURTE 0 00 YRR IO, YOOV 0 TR
——n { - i e . - N J‘ﬂ
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Snapshot of a few
Crown Events 2014

i Cefebrating Retiler's Family
Might with our channel partners
in Cox's Bazaar

Fradd B ¢ D Enpr Cdalan Mestafiy e, (20015
Wi i [Vinur . (T il
e | Civil EF _Slering Divisicn, 1F2

Collaboration with
Institute of Englnears

Bangladesh (IE8)

4 Taking our Channel Partners
" around the World
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Snapshot of a few
Crown Events 2014

Crown Cement distrfbuting
blankets in winter all aver Bangladesh [
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Independent
Auditors’ Report

To the shareholders of M. I. Cement Factory Limited

e have audited the accompanying Tinancial staterments of M. | Cement Factory Limited which comgrise
the statement of finandlal position a8 at 30 june 2014, statement of comprehenshee income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then endad and & summaty of sianificant
ACCOUNTING policks and el relevant explanatony nates herean.

Management's Responsibility for the Financlal Statements

Management i5 responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accardance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs) Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards
(BFRSe) and for such intemal control a5 management detemines (s necessany 1o enabile the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or erren

Auditors’ Respansibllity

Car responsibility i 10 express a0 opnion on these firancial statements based on our audit, We conducted
our audit in accordance with Sargladesh Standards on Auditing (B5As). Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from materlal misstatement,

Ay audit Involves parfarming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclesures in the
financil statements. The procedures seiected depend on thi auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the flsks of material misstatement of the financlal statements, whether dug to fraud o error In making
those risk assesament, the auditor considers rrtemal cantral rebevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presantation of the financial statements in arder to desin awdic procedures. that are appropezte in the
circumstances, but pat for the purpose of expeessing an opinion on the effectivensess of the entlty's Internal
contral, An audit alse Includes svaluating the appropriatengss of accounting pelicies used and the
reasonableness of accaunting estimates made by management, as well a5 evaluating the owerall
presantaton of the firarcial statemenns,

e befeve that the audit evidence we have abtained i sufficent and appropeiate to provide a basls for aur
audit eerion.
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Oplnian

Ir ol aparion, the finandial statements prepaiad in accondance with Bangladesh Accounding Standards
{BASs) and Bangladesh Financial Reparting Standards (BFRSE), give a True and fair wiew of the financial
position of M1 Cament Factory Limited a8 at 30 June 2014 and 1he results of its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended and comply with the Compandes Act 1994, the Securities and
Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicabie laws and regulatians.

e also report that

1] we fiave abiained 2il the information ard explanations which 1o the best of our knowledge and belief
Were recessary for the purpose of our audic 2rd made due verfication thereaf,

1) 10w opinion, proper Books of account 25 required by law have been kapt by the Company so far as
i appeared from our examination of those books;

] the statement of finencial pasition and  statement of comprehensne income along with the
amnexed notes 1 10 44 dealt with by the repoit are in agreement with the books of account; and

i the expenditure ircured and payments macde were for the purposes of the Company's business:

Dhaka Hoda Vasi Ehuwdhalir & Co.
25 Jctoher 2014 Chartered Accountants
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2014
Notes 30.06.2014 30.06.2013
ASSETS Taka Taka
Non- current assets 4,018,304,669 4,175.044,571
Property, plant and equipment 4 3926,836,388 4,082 860,704
Capital wark in progress 5 91468281 G2 183867
Investment In assoclate companles E 57,655,003 35,998,681
Current assets 7271045790 5572352660
Investment in shares 7 119,992 366 o1 30612
Imventoriss B 626,525,720 432 775,081
Trade receivables q 1,769445807 BE7EA3514
Current account with sister concerns 10 299818785 BBS651.853
Other recaivatias 11 57N 527 109,357,300
Ardvance, deposits snd prepayments 12 345,554,790 231078396
Advance noome tax 12 823578504 454 888 145
Lash and cash equivalents 14 3237587850 2855126848
TOTAL ASSETS 11,347,005, 462 9,783,395912
EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES
Sharcholders’ aquity 5,675.411.007 5.594,400,355
Share capital 15 1. 485,000,000 1485000000
Share premium 16 2956550000 2,956,560,000
Retainod earnings 1/015,341 470 932435118
Revaluation raserne 218.509.536 2e0404.236
LIABILITIES
Non current liabilltes 1.278.308.374 1.693,689,300
Lang term boerawing net off curment matuily 17 946,349,358 1451551878
Liabilities for gramuity 1B 44,132,448 13531169
Defarred tax liabiliny 1801 2487 526,539 278305255
Current liabilities and provisions 4,393,286,081 2.495,306,258
Trade payailes 20 107383409 135882163
Other payahles 21 134594953 B5020563
Current partion of long term borrawings P 543,797,000 S03S6LIE
Shiort term loan 23 3743054004 1.485345.278
Prowision tor taz lisbilihes 24 395,049,741 240504853
Liskitities for WRPF 25 44453789 44054330
Payable to IP0 applicants 12720875 12 BES05E
Unclzimed cividend 11,241,219 55B5,368
TOTAL UABILITIES 5671,594,455  4,188,995,557
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 11.247.005.462 9,783.395912
Net Asset Value per share 26 38.22 37.67
The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements,
f"-;gf ] EFIII,_F;- :I;.f:'l'@ iy B
\ L]

Alha] Md. Khablruddin Molla Md. Alamglr Kabir Md. Mozharul islam, FCS

Managirg Directar tor Company Secretary

As pet our seport of same date,
Dhaka Wognl e !
25 Dctober 2014 ek, -.u'-.hm'h-»-mi
Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
L2 M. Cement Factory Lid. Annws Repart 2014 Chartered Accountants



Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Notes 2013-2014 2012-2013
Taka Taka
Reverie 7B FO804 B0 BEZAGYT 132
Corst of sales 2F [B731.727811) 5731,175014)
Gross profit 1,258,915200  1,098,522.119
Other aperating income 28 23430000 603482
Belministrative eaperses | (114.206,125) (112012134
Sefing and distribition sxpenses an [231.034,362) (POOL7T 789
Operating profit 937,104,713 822,467,019
Man-peraling i oms 31 40979575 184503603
Frangial incomefiexpermes) 37 IBE21104E) MEN 363
Share af profit from associales 34 ¢ 1.656.38¢ 54598451
Profit befare WPPF & income tax 933,529,568 925,140,936
Workers' profit participation fund (WPPF} (44 453, 785) {£4,054,330)
Profit before income tax 889,075,779 881,086,606
I T epenses:
Current lax 43 [154.544.848) (134857516
Deferred tax 33 LSRR [S0.B35479)
Net profit after tax for the year 674,389,464 665,368,662
Earnings per share (restated) 35 4.54 4.48
The gnnexed notas 1 to 44 form on integral part of these finoncial stotemants.
el % e
Alhaj Md. Khabiruddin Molla Md. Al figlr Kabir Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS
Managing Director et Coenpany Secretany
A per our report of same datE
(A
ggﬁ.m 2014 LSS Mot
Heda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2014

2013-2014 2012-2013
Taka Taka
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers 7475412982 6902052581
Cash received from other aperating income BFREOEST 5,954,504
Cash received from non operating income 21,893,958 1802317
Lash received!(paid to) from fnancial income (4441 5.1 b8 ShE2HATY
Cash paid 10 supotiers & emokayess (.72 5204 76) (5,453,782 801)
Cash pakd for operating expensss (354,547 238 (15184512
Incame tax pald (329,090,759) (335,297,563
Net cash flows from operating activities 119,987,161 937,062,975
Cash flows from investing activities
Arquisition of property, plant and equpments (129,387 459) (£54,27 5,080
Procesrs from sae of prapery, plant 2nd equipments - 4,142,400
Faymertt made for capital wore i progress I1.259545] (BI557443)
Inevestment in shares 19076102) 405,290
Faid to sister concemns (001669221 76639458
Net cash used in investing activities (339.890,532)  (506,864,495)
Cash flows from financing activities
Receipt of shart term |oan 1556, 708 767 135,316,163
Repayment of kng tem loan (67 455,108 (1495663R17)
Paid te PO applicants (1450800 (4, 744)
Lividend paid (54¢, 345,166 (672743403
Net cash used in financing activities 602,764,410 {478,024,541)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 382,861,039 (47,826.061)
Cash and casn equivalents &t beginning of the year £H05, 126851 £ A02352 504
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Note-14)  3,237987.880  2,855,126,851
Wet aperating cash inflows per share (restated) 0.81 6.31
] - i
A X B

Alhaj Md. Khabiruddin Molla Md. Alémgir Kabir Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS

Managing Directar Mtriae tor {ompany Secretary
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 june 2014

1 Incorporation and legal status

M. L Cement Factony Limited [hereinafter referred o as “the Company® or "MICFLY) was
incoeporated an 31 December 1982 under the Companies Act 1954 as a public Imited Company in
Bangladash. The Comgany subsequently went for initial Public Offering of shares m january 2011
which was fully subscribed and lssued, The Company was Ssted with Chittagong Stock Exchange
Limited (C5E}on 5 May 20717 and Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited {D5E) on 18 May 2011,

Thie regiztoned office.of tha Company |s situated at West Mukterpur, Munshigonj and the corparate
office |5 situated at House # 071 & 07, Road 4 S5, Slock # CENIA), North Avenue, Guishan-2,
Dhaka-1212

The Company has four associate companies namely Crewn Power Generation Ltd. (CPGL) Crown
Mariners Ltd (CML) Crown Cement Concrete and Suiding Products Lid (COCBPL) and Grown
Transportation & Logistics Ltd, [CTLL).

2 Mature of activities

The principal activities of the Company are manufactusing and marketing of Croinary Portland
Cement {OP0) and Portland Composite Cement (PCO), the Company has been marketing its
aroducts with the brand name *Crown: Cement”. In addition: to sale of Company's products in the
local market, the Company also exports it's praducts 10 India. The plant of the Company (£ equinped
with wiorld fameds O-5epa Separator.

3 Summary of significant accounting and valuation policies

The accounting policies applid in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below,
These policles have Deen appfied consistently anc whenever there (s any change inthe poscy
thise have been stated in the succeeding notes The specfic accounting policies selected and
applied by the Compamy's management for significant tramsactions ardd events that have a
material effect In preparation and presentation of financizl statements are In compliance with the
framework of Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS) and Bangladesh Finarcial Reporting
Standards (BFRS).

3.1 Basis of preparation of the financial statements
{a) Accounting standards

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared In accardance. with Bangladesh
Accounting Standards [BAS) and Bangladesh Financial Reporting Stamdards (BFES) and the
requirements of the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, the Comganies ACt 1994 and other
appicable [aws and regulations.

(b} Accounting convention

The financial statements are prepared under the historcal cost convention except fand & land
development znd factory bulldings whikh have been measured under sevauation model The
Company classfied the expenses using the function of expenses method as. per BAS-1
"Presentation of financial statements”.

(€) Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of fnandal statements, compding BFRS, requlres the use of certain aitcal
accounting estimates, i also requires management 1o exercise ther judgment in ascertaining
assiamption in the process of apohyirg the Company's accounting polickes and reported amourt of
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astets, ahidnies, income and expensas. SUCh astimates ane prepared on the assumption of gaing
concern and are established based on currently available information. Changes in facts and
circumstances may result In revised estimates and sctual results could iffer from the estimates.

significant estimates are made by management in the preparation of the financial statements
irclude assumptions used for depreciztion, allowance for receivables, deferred taxes and
prewisions faremployess senefits,

{d) Re-arrangement of figures

Prewiaus year faures have baen re-aranged whernever necessany 1o conform 1o the current year's
presentation,

3.2 Forelgn currency translation/transaction

Foreign cuimency transactions are recorded at the apgikable rates of axchange pravading at the
transactian date in accordance with BAS-21 “The effacts of cthanges in foreign exchange rates”
ani the resultant gandoss 5 recognised in the financal statements, Monglany assets and
[iabilities dencminated in fareign currencies are translated at the rates prevatling an the repoarting
date. Excharge differances 2t the statement of financial position date are recognized in the
statemeant of compretensive Inooms

3.3 Property, plant and equipments (PP&E)

Tangitée fived aseote are accounted for according to BAS-16 [Praperty, plant and equipment)
gither at histoncal cost or at revaluation less cumulative depreciation and the capital
walk-In-progress is stated at cost Histonical cost inchades expenditure that is directly attributatie
1o thee acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are Included in the assets camying amount or recognized as 2 separate assel as
approgeiate, only when it & probable tat future econamic benaefits associated with the ftem will
flow 1o the Campany and the cast of the item can be measured relizbly. Repal and mantenance
casts are charged 1o The statement of comprehensive Income during e financia perod in which
they are imcurmed

Degraciation on assets ather than land Is caloulated using the reduing baance methad ar straight
lirie method over thelr estimatad usaful ves at the following rates,

Current Year
Category of PPSE I aste ) | Depreciation Method
Mother yessal g Sl:raigﬁt line
Buicings 2 Reduing balance
Plant and machinery 10| Reducing haiance
Fumiture 10 Reduing balance
Decoration 20 Strzight line
Equipment 20 Straight ling.
Computers 3333 Strsight ling
Transport vehicesfvessels 10-15 Reducing balance
Other assets 1020 | Redudng balance
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I respect of additian to flxed assets, depreclatian is chargad fram the moath of addition while ra
depreciation s charged in the month of disposal,

I aceordance with the provision of BAS-35: Impeirment of Assets, ao impairment indication has
besanebcerved till reporting cate,

BH no of warsport vehiclecfvessels awned by the Company are being ogerated by Crown
Transportation and Lagistics Limited for carrying Company’s praducts. Mo related income and
eXpEnSEs elrept depreciation have been recognized in the financial Statements, unfike srevious years
the ret effect of such operationis not significant 2nd 2 such, the amount of net suplus of loss has
it been warked out by The Company,

34 Inventories

Inventories are valued in accordance with BAS-2 (Inventories) at the ‘ower of cost ang net
realizable value, The costof imentanies is based on weighted average methad, The cost af finished
goods comprises raw matenals, packing materials, direct labow, other direct and related production
averheads (based on rarmal canacityl and produs ton related degeaciation.

3.5 Trade and other recelvables

Trade receivables are initially accounted for basad an oaginal invoice amount after considering the
prabable losses due to uncallactivity.

3.6 Cash and cash equivalents

I includes cash in hand and bank depasits thase are available for use by the Company naving
insignificant sk of changes in value of these current assets.

3.7 Employee benefits
(a) Defined contribution plan

Tre Company operates an aqual corfributary provident fund for its permanent ampiompess,
pravtsion far which = being made monthiy 25 per the rules. The fund is recognizad by the Mational
Board of Feverus (NBR) and is administerad by 2 Board of Trastees, This s a funded schame and
Separate accaunts ane maintained for this fund

{b) Defined benefits plan

This represants an unfunded gratulty scheme far 18 permanent emplovess, dne latest basic salary
is aliocated to employess wha have nat completed ten years while one and a half latest basc
salary is adacatad who have completed ten vears of service in the Compary, Unlike in previous
years, whan half ltest basic salary was allocated to emplovees wha had not completed six years
while ore latest basic salary was allocated whe had completed twehe years of serdce in the
Company.

Had the gratuity besn provided for par pravious years palicy operating arafit for the year would
hatve been increased by Tk, 24,257 B04

Mo actuarial valuation was dore for liability on account of gransty, However, the managermsnt
balieves that such valuaticn & not likely to vield a resit sgnificantly different fram the current
prawision,
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[t} Group insurance benefit

Ihe permarent emplovees of the Company are covered under 3 group inserance scheme and
irsurance premium is being charged to statement of comprehensive income.

{d) Workers' profit participation fund (WPPF)

The Company retoenizes 2 provision and expenses for Worke:s' Profit Farticipation @ S% of net
profit ds per relevant Act

(e) Leave encashment benefit
Ihe permanent employess of the Company are entitied to encash samed Bave inpursuant to the
leave encashment policy corsistently applied and approved by the Board. The Company cakulates
bensfit for leave encashment on & calender year hasis,
3.8 Trade and other pavables

Liabilities are recorded &t the amount payable for settlement in respect of goads and senwces
received by the Company,

3.9 Provisions
Provisiors are recognized in accordance with BAS-37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets), The Company recognises a provisian when there is a present obiigation, legal
oF constructine, & 4 result of past events and it is probable that an outfiow of resources
embodying economic henefits will be required ta settle the chigation and 2 relisbis estimate of the
amount of the abligation can be made.

3.10 Revenue recognition

{a) The Company recogrizes sales when products are dispatched and rsks and fewands are also
transferzed 1 the buyers,

{b) Ircome from export eamed in forsign currency (smounting to U0 66,11 670 equivalent to BOT
50946853955

(€} Intesest income on bank denasits is recognized orve credited to the Company 2ccounts maintained
with the respactive banks;

{d) Ircome trom mother vessel, when it i being chartered out, is recognized a5 per retum received
from Alunited Maritime (RyL.) Lid:

(e} Oividerd income from investment in shares is recogrized on receipt basis;
{f) Other income is recognized on accrus basis.
3.11 Advertising and promotional expenses

Al costs asaociated with advertisicg and promational sctiities are chargsd ot in the year of
pEUrAnGE,
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3.12 Allocation of directors’ remuneration

Directoes' remuneration s alloceted to different cepartments Bke- adminlstration, factony and
selling and distribution on the basis of the furctions performed by them for the Company

3.13 Allocation of depreciation

Depraciation is allocated to factory. adminstrative and selling & distribution averheads on the
hasic of utilization of assets by the function of the Company.

3.14 Income tax
{a) Current tax
Frowiskan is made at the nuling rate of tax as per the Finance Act 2014,
{b) Deferred tax

Deferred taxis recogrized wsing the balance sheet methed Deferred tax anises due to temparary
difference, deductible or tzxable, for the events or fransaction 5 recognized in the income
statement. A temparany difference is the diference between the tax base of an asset or liabllity
and Its carrying amaunt/reported amourt in the statement of financlal position. Deferred tax
aasots ar llability ks the amount of income tax recoverable or payable infuture perlad(s) recognized
in the curent period. The defermed tax ligbility'expense does not oeste @ legal liability
srecenerabeliny toand fram: the income tax autharity,

3.15 Cash flows statement

Cash flows statement is prepared pringipally in accordance with BAS-7 [Cash Fows Statement)
and the cash flaws from operating acthvities have been presented under direct method.

3.16 Investment in associate companies

Aszsociate companies are those where M. L Cement Factory Ltd has direct investment and
sierificant influence over thedr financlal and operating policy cexisions but has na contral or joint
contrad over those policies.

Invastment in- associate companies are measured under equity methed and recopgrised In the
statement of firancial position at cost kess proportionate share of post acquisivion profit or foss in
assoclate comparies 1o the extent that it does not exceed the mwvestment at cost. Details of
investment and consoidation effect are shown in succeeding note - &.

3.17 Date of authorization

The Board of Disectors has authortsed the finandal statements an-25 Qctaber 20714 for
publication

3.18 General

These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka whichis functional and presentation
currency of the Compary, Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Taka,
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30.06.2014 30.06.2013
Taka Taka
4 Property, plant and equipment
A. Cost
Upening balance 5050503601 3447412459
Add : addition during the year 131,365654 1607660265
5181869255 5055072724
Less - disposal during the year 3200 #.569,1¢4
Total(A) 5.181,866,055  5,050,503,600
B. Accumulated depreciation
Opering balance 67 RA259 B/6556518
Add : charged during the year R38N0 294173034
1,255,030,306 971,129,552
Less : adjustment far disposal during the year 540 3486656
Total(B) 1,255,029,666 967,642,896
C. Carrying amount (A-B) 3926836388  4,082,860,704
A separste scheduie of property, plant and equipment i Byen in sraeans-a,
5 Capital work in progress
Capital machinery 1418788 3334024
Sub-station 132033 £V line-0PD0) B1EET T G151 447
Sub-station (3371 £ fire -DPOC) = 4,190,507
Wrirkshop for dump tuck & payloader - B40.247
Fly ash silo constraction - 17699621
Jetty corstruction 133554 2
Faceer for unit-Iv 1519 -
Building torstruction £637 -
Lonstruction of slsg shed 271185 -
Others 203953

91,468,281 92,183,867

Sub-station represents project cost Incurred upto 30 june 2014 for construction and erectionof 132/33
KN sub-station project which has been successfully complieted on 37 August 2014,
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30.06.2014 30.06.2013

Taka Taka
6 Investment inshares of assoclate company (note 3.16)
] Crewn Mariners Limited {CML) 315554481 23,995,730
Add : share of profitf{loss) from imestment &1 656322 G998351
Net imvestment in CML 57,655,003 35,998,681
el Crown Cement Cancrete ard Building Prodicts Limitied {COCBP . 500,000
Less share of profivoss) from insestment . {00007
Net Investment in COCBPL . -
i Cromn Trarsportation & Loglstics Umited (CTLL)
Ha] Crown Power Generation Limited ({PG) : Z
Net investment in shares of assoclate company (a+b+c+d) 57,655,003 35,998,681

Share of lesses of associate companies are recognised in the fnancial statements based on unaudited
financial statements of those entities 1o the extent it does not exceed the camying amount of
inwestment in assocates, vestment in equity in following associate entities are written off fully 25 3
result of absorbing share of losses in the previcus yean

a) Crown Merners Limited (CML)

b} Crown Cement Concrete and Building Products Limited (CCCBPL)

) Crown Trarsportation & Logistes Limited (CTLL)

d) Crown Power Generation Limited [CPGL)

A= such, mo share of loss has been considened during the year under review for these entities,

6.1  Summanzed key financial information of the associate companies are presented Deiow I sciordarde
with 345 - 28 Irvestment in Associates.

Crewin Cement Crown

Particulas Conarnes | G | amgaraton | G
Linited (Cht)  BuldingProducts| & Logisics | v fepry)

,mmm Limited (CTLL)
Firenc il statements (un-audted) s a! 42004 11032014 3032014 16082014
8ol MICEL stake &0 2l Fid a0
hital fwesiment | amcopo0 | sooooo | s0o000 | 2000000
Tata assels | 857587802 | 46643914 | 303718203 | 159193200
Teata lihifies BRIOCERE | G4G079407 | 43RBIAMS | IE0AM4226
R 47t 422 257 A5 | 2F20a0 035 11303718
Praifit ar flass) AZBIE08 | (PRI02A24) | (332907800 | (2530268
Accumitlated prefitf oss) IBBESEZOY | (BSA3G493) | (138615143) | (25651088
Ureecagnisad losses of sstasale comianias - 17587099 | 25623029 | 10825513
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30.06.2014 30.06.2013

Taka Taka
7 Investment In shares
Opening balance S1.B30R1Z2 9343943458
Add: addition during the vear 2ERTTR1T -
Less - disposal durirg the vear 18751100 385447
99,957,129 93,108,901
Mdd: Unrealized gainfloss) fqom fair valuation 20,035,237 1,278,289

119,992,366 91,830,612
Break- up of Investment In shares:

e[ o |ty |

Barik Asla Ld 26015 456445 APR075
Beximon Pharma Lo, £3.260 726,353 967E16
Delta Life Insurance Ltd, 11.550 2,370,786 1844075
Jamuna Ol Coltd, 157,300 32,761,300 33457710
Meghna Petrolum Ltd, L Ll 3326426 4578580
Matieral Bank Ld 329570 3586010 3593403
{ne Bank L1d §92.367 9,254 550 B331.534
Frime Bank Ltd. 24.200 Ea2440 592500
Rupall Bank Ltd. 34028 18558499 2058834
Secial lskami Bank Ltd 55000 825000 621,500
Sizisth East Bank Lid, 157,500 2,535,000 3071250
Square Pharma Ltd, 145,366 237464727 41022850
Titas Gas Lid 2925 224440 224055
Eastern Bank L1d, 598,200 15708445 17228180
IFIC Bank Ltd. BB 185773 147319
Ernvwoytex Ltd a0 2507 2390
Fower grid Ld 2500 107,530 106250
Uttara Bars Lid. 7700 2428497 189420
(5P Finance Lid, 8000 233530 166,500
Trust bank Lwd 1,500 32241 22200
Lartka Bangla Finance Lrd, 1050 712202 44835
BSRM Steel Lid 1,000 BE.JEE B3.800
GAPort Ld 4,300 94975 103200
Meghina Life Insdrance Ltd, 200 106625 105480
Phoenix Insurance fd 3200 116,022 114,840
Asla Pacific Insurance [id. E.500 135822 137,150

99,957,129 |119,992,366

Ireestment i shares has been megsured at fair value of the respective shares last trading orices as of

30 e 201 4 a5 per the reguirement of BAS - 35
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30.06.2014  30.06.2013
Taka Taka
8 Inventories
Ldsing stock Quantity
Clinket MT 2487618 128173884 153002515
ypsum MT 259183 7451483 16257346
Sl M 3883850 1135878953 AT ES]
iy ash MT 1046314 20358571 ¢S J606ES
Lime stone MT 445984 7148587 mF o Pl bt
Hags PCS 350850 GOZ7BIE 16137815
Cemerit grinding aid MT £h 1 E70E1 -
Stores & spare parts 141089658 75841937
Firished cemert MT 40 &.263 120800
426,712413 328,371,909
Irrtany in transit
Clinkes 1871498852 84320379
Gy psum 8549530 29560
Sl - F4.2586,909
Fiy ash 3064516 SEITETT
Spare parts : 145554
195,813,307 104,404,073
626.525.720 432775981
9 Trade receivables
Carporate 339520114 269981570
Deglers GIIRIGI24 267043189
Cistributars 157,364,137 £9.385,573
(ther customers 162508052 105462557
Transpart bill 9B12716 9E23116
1.182.873.143 681,496,005
Less aliowance for doubtful debt 13427336 V3B52.491
Trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debt 1.169,445807 667643514
Aging of the above receivables is ghven below:
| upto T month | 1- 3 months | 3 - 6 months| above 6 months | Total
| Corporate 127745331 | 1190459683 | 57367462 35350338 | 335520114
' Dealers 44717558 176395539 21525517 | 21678510 | 513BIE124
| Dsvovtors | 118753662| 10893)10|  7466880| 20850485 | 157364137
Dther customers | S8245049| 103,297,045 7072 313896 | 162558052
Transport bl 2 : = 9512716 | 9512716
[ ) 649,062,699 | 359,627,077 86367031 87816336 | 1,182,873,143

Tracke receivables remalr outstanding for more than a year {out of above & months categony) amaunting to
BOT 26 milliar bus management conssdered those 25 good and as such, no provislon & setup in the books.
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30.06.2014 30.06.2013

Taka Taka
10 Current account with sister concerns
Crown Power Generation Limitegd 176,116,128 fid 306,124
Crown Polymer Bagging Limited 198079087 104518916
Croven Cement Concrete and Building Products Limited 135862 570 1265612342
Crowen Transpartation & Logistics Limites 273892477 14360271
Crowwn Cement Trading Company 154517454 15,543 758
Lrown Mariners Limited H9816.726 94568434

‘B89,818,785 689,651,863

Particulars Purpose
Full Fower genstated is supplied 1o M. |,
Crawn Power Gereration Limited Cement Factory Limited at less than the
competitive mareet price,
A bags as produced s supplied to M. 1L
Crawr Pobymer Ba gaing Limited Cement Factory Limited a1 [less fhan
competitive mareet price,

This tompany  wenl  into commencil
pre-production on 15 May 2013 and is
irweved in ready mix cement business using
exclusively Crowe Cement.

Crawm Transpartation & Legistics Limited is
provicieg - logistics service for  ganming
firished product to o tamer al alower prics
thar the marke! rate,

& partnesship finn, occassionatly imohied in

Crawr Cernent Concrete and Building Products Limited

Crown Trarsportation & Logistics Umited

Crowin Cement Trading Comgsry ot tadre biidess
Crown Mariness Limited is providing logistics
. i sanvice far canying faw materals from
Czanwir Marninees Linited T AAITYING Iove ISRl R

Chittagang part 1o Factory ghat at lass than
campetitive market rica,
Thete tepresent temporary unsecyred and interest-lee oang 10 associate ertities The terms and

conditions with respect t repaymens ate not fixed However, the managemsnt antitipales that such
nans will be realised anytime but roat later than next 3 [theee) years Trom 1he repocting date.

11 Other receivables

Crown Corparatian - 31505
Ak Trade International - 10,200
MK Enterprice - 2300
Malla Salt Triple Refineny Limited 132,790 132730
Alunited Martime Business {(Pvt] Ltd, - 30.197.248
Interest income receivable on FOR 57,188,737 78993617

57,331,527 109,357,300
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12

13

13.1

Advance, deposits and prepayments
{a) Advance

Advance to partlesd contractors
Advance to employee agalnst works
Advance to empkoves agalnst salary
Advance agzinst rent

WAT current account

Advance 1o others

Advance agalnst i2rd purchase

Advance against raw matienals purchase

(b) Deposits

Security deposit and other depaosit
Margin for bark gusrantes

L/C margin deposit

(c) Pre-paid expense
Insurance prarrium for e FY-2014-2015

Advance income tax
Cpening bakance
Add - paid durlng the year

Add : adiustment (note ] 3.00)

Adjustment
Assessment years:
200a - 09

2009 - 10
200-1
201-12

30.06.2014
Taka

122822750
1106082
598,004
9712004
81316700
G39.209
54319000
12483109
273,552,804

19797704
3498520
47701153
70,957,488

1414434
1.414,438
345,964,790

494 888,145
329080759
823,978,904

823,978,904

-

30.06.2013
Taka

77438508
39531223
1777483
10159834
39544757
554027
5585000

174,990,832

15,584,508
3363796
37.139.261
56,087,564

231,078,396

717452042
335,297,563
1.052,749,605
357801460
454,888,145

SB117.457
953530047
179703497
226350449
557,861,460

Advance miome tax pakd during the year represents tax deducted at source by respective parties and
banks on purchase of raw materials, bills for cement supply, export sales and interestincome
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30.06.2014 30.06.2013

Taka Taka
14 Cash and cash equivalents {Note 3.6)
Cash in hand
Cash Inhapa- Head office 1054185 1.627,161
Cash Inhapa- Factony 121726 470452
1375912 2,157,613

Cash at bank
Cne Bank Limited 35025 1,214,049
South East Bank Limited bd52 7612
Mercantlle Bank Limited 7831409 1385853
Jamuna Bank Lim(ted 1,585.679 20,457
State Bank of Incia 15520027 E74.804
The Cioy Bark Limited 1.360.731 281,616
Mational Bank Limited 5052304 B23,451
Extch Bangla Bank Limited 9804077 1,534,150
Prime Bank Limited 47185669 1,849,756
inited Commerclal Bank Limited 2274564 2673745
Mutugl Trust Bank Limited 3458060 229116
Puball Bank Limited 51543574 1021759
janata Bank Limlted 361968 342107
Dihaka Bank Limited 3,635,201 LO27ee
Sniahjaial Islami Bark Limited 18,356,042 1:803,378
ittara Bank Limited 5012 108516
The Hongkong And Shanghal Banking Corporation Limlited . 3834558
Brac Bark limited 15087950 14435855
kslami Bank Bangladesh Limlted 3,788,801 1024835
Cine Bank Limited-dividend account 4,575,084 4534 241
Standaed Chartered Bank 3024
IFIC Bank Limited 354 480 .
Extch bangls. Bank Limited-dividend account 5233384 5263740
Mational Credit and Commerce Bank Limited R .
Uinited Commerclal Bank Limited-cividend account 2,351,850

115,376,249 44,595,567
Term deposits 3,121,235, 729 2,808,373,668

3,237,987.890 2,855,126,848

Term depesits Incude anamaount of Taka 1,535,093,193 as flen against termoan taken from The Horg
Korg Sharghal Banking Corporation Limited for term loan and Taka 31,544,237 held under llen with
(One Bani Ltd. as security against bank puarantes in favour of Chittagong Custom House,
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15 Share capital
Authorised Capital

500000500 Osdinany Shares af Tk, 10 2ach
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital
148500500 Ordinary Shares af Tk, 190 esch fully paid-up and share holding positianis as under,

Name
Md. jahansir Alam
Alhaj Md Ehabiruddin Molla
Md, Alamgir Kabir
Alhaj Roweya Begum
Mills Mohammag Mainu
Md. Mzanur Bahman
Md, Almas Shimul
Alhaj Md. Abdur Rouf
Md, Ashrafuzzaman
Md, Abdil Ahad
' Generar Public

sl #

aad

L7 R o SN TR . T o (R - 8 R |

R p—
Sl =

No. Shares
23024925
0790000
14397075
10:395.000
13395000
13395000
7276500
2598750
£.298 750
2075000
44,550,000

148,500,000

30.06.2014

Taka

30.06.2013
Taka

5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000

Holding %
1550%
18.00%

5.70%
FL0%,
FL0%,
7105
4.90%
1.75%
1.75%
1.40%
30.00%

230,249,250
287 500,000
143,570,750
103,850,000
103,550,000
103,550,000
72,755,000
25,587,500
£5.587.5010
20,750,000
445,500,000

230,249,250
07 500,000
143,570,750
103,556,000
103,556,000
103,956,000
12,765,000
25,587,500
25,587 500
20,735,000
445,500,000

100% 1,485,000,000 1,485,000,000

The Company increased 55 paid-up share capital from 1,350 malion to 1 4BS mifion by Ssuirg
13500000 ordinary shares a5 horus share af Taka 10 each (o the shareholders as declarad a1 181N
Annst Ceneral Mesting held on 23 Decenber 2012

No.of No.of

Shareholding Range Shareholders | Holdings | Shareholders | Holdings |
30.06,2014 | 30.06.2014 | 30062013 | 30.06.2013

Less than 499 shares G4BE4 | 8113589 76259 | 10322555
500 1o 5,000 shares 4,176 5810363 6083 g433,18¢
5001 1o 10,000 shares 275 1,037,926 425 | 3025598
10007 1o 0,000 shares 126 1,767,700 195 2B7TETE
20001 1030000 shares 46 | 1,147370 B3| 1556465
30001 140,000 shares 25 870,109 34| 1143583
40007 1o 50000 shares 16 735530 27 1,259,554
50001 to 100,000 shares || 28E0704 42| 2854010
100,001 to 1000000 shares 34 g4¢7 8% 28 5158524
wer 1000000 shares 14 | 11702880 12| 112063211
Toal 69,618 148500000 83,172 148,500,000
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30.06.2014
Taka

16 Share premium

Tris fepresents share premium of Taka 3,048 millon raised by issuing 30 milion of orcinary shargs & 10160 per
share though IPO during the year 2010-2011, The break-up of the balence of dhare premium is ghien below:

17

171

30.06.2013
Taka

Share premium realised during the year 2010-2011 2048 000,000 3,048,000.000
Less income tax paid on share premium (97,440,000 (97,440,000
Balance as on 30 June, 2074 2,956,560,000 2,956,560,000
Long term borrowing net-off current maturity
Project loan for unit IV and mother vessel
Syndication loar 78,743 BB, 717,278
Term loan 1,484 095,250 1,150,843,797
1,484,173,993 1.937,561,075
Hire purchase loan
Frime Bank Limita] 5562 356 403044
5,962,396 14,030,421
1,490,136,388 1,951,591,496
L& current portion of long term borowing (Note -2¢.00) b43, 787,000 500039618
946,349,388  1,451,551,878
Detafls of long term borrowing is presented below:
|!|,'§‘¢u Name of lenders Typeofioan | ATOUTI | 1anyre
O Barik Limited-Lead arrange
Prime Bank Limited
United Commercisl Bank Limited
Shiahjalal Islami Sark Limited
Eastern Bank Limited
T | Berk Asia Syndication oan 78743 | Syesrs
Qutch Bargla Bank Limited
MNational Bani Limited
|amuna Bank Limited
Mutuat Trust Bank Limited
SABMCO
Term kan jare-aff)
to retire deferred
2 | The Horgkong and Sharghal Benking Corporation Limited [ import documents | 1484095250 | 5 years
of ocean poing
L | vessel
3 | Prime Bank Limited Hirepurchaseloan| 5.962.3%5| 5years

M. 1. Cement Factory Lid. Annual Report 2014 58




Securities for syndicate loan:

(a) Factory land measuring B21.05 decmal aong with factony bullding and civil constructons (present
ard future) thereon with other syncicate lencers at West Mukterpur, Munshigen) has been placed as
collateral against syncicaton loan

(b} First charge over Piant and Machinery with the RJSC

{c) Assignment of benefits of all insurance polices on fixed assets of the project in favor of the syndicate
lenders. The barrower shall obtain insurance policy on the project assets (factory tullding. plant and
machinery, ‘equipment) from: on insurer acceptable to the lenders covering minimum 110% of ban
EMount.

id) Perscnal guarantee of alf the directiors of MICFL.

Security for term loan:
FOR amounting o Taka 1,51 2,202,542 with HSEL I= Bened as coffateral aganst term loan.

Security for hire purchase loan:
Joint Cwrership of the vebicles to be procured duly insured covering 15t party comprehenslve insurance,

18 Liablifties for gratulty

Gratulty

Dpzning balance 19831 163 ga0z11B

A : provision made during the year 3,192.220 E41459:0
45,023,383 15,322,044

Less: paymentsfadiustment made during the year B90935 | 440882

Closing balance 44,132,448 13,831,163

19 Deferred tax labilities

Opening balane |B55B3 652 104748223

Adkd:provision during the year BOL141468 BOS35429

Closing balance 245,725,120 185,583,652

18.1 Details of deferred tax calculation
ia) The tax effects of temporary differences anizes from tax base and accounting base af relevant assets

and hiabifles:
Deferred tax assets
Provision for gratuty 10922 781 3423213
Abiwance Tor doubtful debt 1373 266 3400492
14,246,046 6,851,704
Deferred tax liabilltias :
Property, plant and equisment {25594871,166) [192435356)
(259,971,166)  (192,435,356)
(245,725,120) (185,583,652)
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21

211

2l.g

30,06.2014
Taka

30.06.2013
Taka

i) The taw efferct of temporary differences artses from tax base and accounting base of revaued assets;

Deferred tax llabllity on revaluation reserve

Opening balance {42,722 607 (43378002
Less: transfermed 1o retalned earmings 621,188 BEE455
Closing balance (42,101,419) (42,722,607)
Total (287,826.539) (228,306,259)
Trade payables
Suppliers 106,766,732 135674506
Cithears 1214877 12145877
107,983,409 136,889,183
Aging of the above trade payables is given below:
| upto 1 manth| 1-3 months | 3- 6 months | above 6 months|  Total
| Sl 40574852 | 07360748 | IA2ETIO3 | ZIIBRAIS | 106768732
thers - . 1214677 1214577
| Total 47,905,749 | 30,073,897 | 7,625,671 22,378,092 (107,983,409
Other payables
Creditor for other finance fNote 21.01) 22158339 26427508
Creditor for revenue expenses Mote 21.02) 112835614 38592975
134,994,953 65,020,563
Creditor for other finance [Note 21)
Sequrity deposit 4144448 3783535
Arhrarce against sales BO400 BOA400
VAT deduction at soute 9607073 5726330
Tax dediction at source 4794977 14,582,108
Payable w0 empioyess provident fund 1727004 1493536
Adirance against motor oycle 1213872 719476
Employee t3x payable B1ESES 62,103
22,158,339 26,427,568
Creditor for revenue expenses (Note 21)
Salories, wages Sovertime payabie 17774528 | 3544557
Adit and professionat faes 450000 250,000
Electriciy b 37 866,366 e3700,132
Telephang bil s22420 -
Ly bl 19955
Payable apainst firancial expense IFA0T5] .
Others ¢ HBES34 887291
Payatie 1o Alunited Maritime Business (Put) Lid. 0502060
112,836,614 38,592,975
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ie

22 Current portion of long term borrowings
Project loan for unit -IV
Syndication loan
Term loar:

Hire Purchase loan
Prime Barik Limited

23 Short term loan
Cash credit (hypothecation)
One Bank Limited
Frime Bark Limited
The Horgkong And Shanghat Banking Corparation Limited
Eastern Sank Limitad
|zmunz Bank Limited

Loan against trust receipts

One Bank Limited

Prime Barik Limited

Castem Bank Limited

Thi Hongkong And Shangha Barking Comporation Limited
Shahjalal [sami Bank Limitad

United Commercial Bank Limited

|zmuna Bank Limited

Time laan

One Bank Limited

Prime Barik Limited

Eastam Sank Limited

Thi Hongkong And Shanghai Banking Corporation Limitad
Jamuna Bank Limited

IFIC Bari Limdted

Offshore loan

Prime Bark Limdted

The Horgkong Arsd Shanghat Barking Corporation Limited
Eastermn Bank Limited

Jzmunz Bank Limited

Shahjalal Isi2mi Bank Limited

IFIC Bante Limited

One Bank Limited

United Commercial Bank Limited

Securities for short term loan;

(b Fersonal guarantee of all the diractors of MICFL

30.06.2014
Taka

539671,000
539,671,000

4,116,000
4,116,000
543,787,000

139495293
42 562544
54490962

0445444
35,465,549
281,959,803

51787439
53572427
6473039

343858133
8451070
136367091
£7.A83330
581,377,529

180251823
34544353
209,397,292

16307877
ZB2THO5E
479,175,302

102816434
425127511
342897841
181,336,541

32390820

71842558
478065.320
163155006

1,800,538,271
3,143,054,994

1) Registened hypothecation [Pari-Passul onentire fioating assats of the company with other knders.

i) Notarized iGHA to sell the hypothecated assets of the Bomawer,

30,06.2013
Taka

191417618
292,500,000
483,917,618

16,122,000
18,122,000
500,035,618

43782251
45895156
Be 377450
49,740,089

201,798,995

124050818
48,1 16408
55,136,250

130802040

358,105,517

18875244
215173722
123,681,080

41410000

399,339,996

253018136
162855420
HE,181.514
25045650

5271 n-ﬂrTEﬂ
1,486,345,228

i) Demand Fromissory Nates & Letter of Continuty amount covering the limit af short term Inan
1) Dividends payment will ot exceed profits relating to that year,
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231 The Company has been enjoying the following short term facilities from variaus bank undsr the temms and

conditions given below:

SNl Name of the Bank Type of Loan Limit of Loan | Purposzof Loan | Tenwre | Nature

11| One Berk Limitad CashCreditHypothecatien. | 150000000 | working Capital | OneVear | Revoliing

| # | OnzBenk Umited Lo against tustrereipts | £SG000000 | Working Capitat 12005 | Rewlving

| 3| Ce Senk Limitey Aol te ban FEN000 | Workig (epital 120deys | Aevtlving

T4 One Bark Umitad Letter of cradit foon funded) | 75000000 | WomdgCopital | 1205 | Revoluing

I il Tolksue plarantes

L | Ore Bank Limited Barke guaranten 1000C000 | For tender aed OneYear | Revaiving

; utiities faciisies

{6 | Brime Barnk Limited Cach Credit Hypatecation | SGODDC00 | WokingCapitl | OneYear | Gevolvig

|7 | Frime Barik Limited Loan agaret tristrecepts | 520000000 | Working Capital Sidays | Sevoing

T8 | Pime Bark Lvited Revolving treloan TH0E00000 | WokingCaptdl | Wdays | Revoving

|4 | Frime Baric Limited Letter of credit (oan funded) | SS0000000 | Working Capital Hidavs | Revtliing

| Tokssue guarantes

10 | Prime Raric Limized Baric guarantes 50000000 | for tender and One Yewr | Revaving
' utfities faizias

11 | H5H CaehiCragit Hypathecztion. | BOCODO0N | Working Capital (neYear | Sevoluig

17 [T Loan egainst tust recepts. | T200000000 | WokhgGapltal | T50ckys | Revoivig

13 | HRHC Letter of credit (non Fondec) [1.200000000 | WokingCepital | 15085 | Revoluing
| Toissue guarantes

14 | HEBC Berk guarantes 20000000, | for terder vl (ne Year | Revaving

| uthities facilzies

15 hvmaﬂkahm:l i_l:mmarﬁtt:lﬁ[im:epﬁ mm:umn Werkdng Capital 180deys | Eevdliing

"6 | Emuna Bank Limited Reqingimelen | | 20000000 | Weingleptal | 1200eys | Revovig)

{77 | Jmunafiank Cimted | Latter o cradit foon Funded) | 400000000 | WorkmpGapital | 180 days | Revolung |

T | Bark iited. | Latterof it on Funded] | 250000000 | WokingCopltal__ | 101y | Revoing

119 | Eastern Bank Limited Letter of radit an funded) | 750C00000 | WorkngCaptial | 180deys | Revohing

| 10 | Eastern Bank Lmited Lash Credit Hypothesstion S0000000 | Working Capital OneYear | Revoling

[ | Toissue guarantas

21 |Easteer Bark Lirited Bark guarantes 000000 | fortendeeard | OneVesr | Revaiving
| utlities facilzles

(72 EanBakinied | Geungtrelos | 4000000 | WokgCata | TEDGeys | Revung

73 (e BonkUmited | Lo agarst tustrecepts | 720000000 | Workiglapal | 150ckys | Fevohng

[ 24 [ ShahpiallsamiBank[td | Letterof qradit(non fanded) | BOQGODO00 | Working (apital | TB0days | Revoiuing

| 25 | ShahjdaliSamiBarkLtd | Loanaganst tustreceints | 480000000 | Woking Capital | 150¢ys | Revoluing

| 26 | ShahjallsemiBark Lid. | Revolving tme foen S2E00000 | vorngCepital | 150deys | Revoing
| Tissue glarabes

27 | Shahjzial ilai Bark Ltd Bark: puarantes 100500000 | -for tander and

i | I | utditses Faties

| 28 | FCBank Limited Letter of wratiton funded) | 1500000000 | Working Capital

| #9 | FC Bank Limited Lo eganst tustreceipts | AGR0D000 | Working Capite

| 30 | FCBank Limiteg iz Time oo F0CL00000 | Working Capial

31 [FCRankLimted Cash Credit Fhpotication | 100000000 | Working Capital

' 32 | United Commercial Bank Ltd. | Letter of radit pan Funded) | GOOGOBA00 | Working Capita

| 33 | United Commarcia Bank Lt | Loanaganst tustreceipts | SO0000000 | Working Capital

| 32 [ Standard Crertered Bank | Letterof aedit on fonded] | SOGCO3000 | Wioking Capta

135 | Standard Cartered Bank. _umm!t'mtf!mpt 70000000 | Woring Capital

36 | Stantard CherteredBank | Cash CreditHypatoecetion | S0000C00 | Working Capta
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24 Provision for tax liabilities

Coening bakance
Add ; provision made during the year

Add : adjustment Note:Z4.01)

24,1 Adjustment
Assessment years:
2008-09
2008-10
Zma-n
Z0r-12

25 Liabilities workers' profit participation fund (WPPF):

Cpening bakance
Less ; payments made during the yesr

Add : prowisicn made during the vear
Closing balance

Z6 Revenue
Domestic sales (Mote:25.01)
Expors sales
Net sales

30.06.2014
Taka

240,504 853
154,544 845
395,049,741

395,049,741

44054330
44054330

44,453, 7B
44,453,789

2013-2014
Taka

7481152616
29,483,955
7,990,642 611

30.06.2013
Taka

B63,483.837
134882316
798,366,353
557.BE14ED
240,504,893

36117467
95350047
175703497
£26,650445
557,861,460

37I73I|E
37173812

44054330
44,054,330

2012-2013
Taka

6,124,585,753
705111379
5,829,697.132

Iri the year 2013-2014 revenue of the Company has inTeased by 17.00% & compared to the year
2012-2013, Domestic saes increased by 22.1 5%, however, the export sales decreased by 27 74% during

the year comparing pravious yesr.
26.1 Domestic sales net of VAT

Cement sales

Cirwer sales

Total domestic sales

TAZ5 654015
55,500,000

7.481,15Z,616

5,124,565,753

6,124,585.753

Durirg the year, we have contributed to national excheguer amounting to taka 1,122,177 BS2 46 as VAT

26,2 Quantity wise sales

M M. Cement Factory Ltd, Annual Report 2014

01-07-2013 to 30-06-2014 01-07-2012 to 30-06-2013
Particulars Quantity Amount in Quantity Amount in
Wise Sale Taka Metric Ton Taka .
Domestlc sales 1,122,538 7481152616 B94.559 5,124,585,753
Euror: sales B1.54000 S054R9995 103650 705111379
Total 1.204,078.42 7,990,642,611 998,209 | 6.829,697,132
26.3 Catepory wise guantity soid are:
 Particulars Quantity (MT)
Bag rement 11167255
Bulk cement H300587
Clirker 10,000.00



£7 Costof sales

27.1

Opening stock of raw materials
Add: purchase of raw materials during the year
Less.: closing stock of raw matenials

Raw material comsumed { Note 27.07)
Factory overhead Mote 27.05)
Cost of production

Add: opening finished goods
Cost of goods availlable for sale
Less: closing finished goods
Cost of sales

Less.: cuty draw back for export
Cost of sales

Raw material consumed
Opening stock of raw malesals
Clinkr

Cypsum

Sl

Fiy &sh

Lirne slong

Bags

Al purchesed during (he year
Clinkgr

Cypsum

Sl

Fiy 25

Lirne slong

Bule cament purchass

Cemant grirddng aid

Hags

L clhsing stock of 12w matedats
Clinks

Crypsurm

Sl

iy ash

Lirme slore

Cament grindng aid

Hags

Raw materfals consumed

MT
MT
M1
M
M1
FCS

M1
M1
M1
M
M1
M1
M1
PCS

M1
M
M1
M1
M1
M1
FCS

2013-2014 2012-2013
Taka Taka
752478704 242 460,151
5883315545 5029751 576
[285510452) (252428,708)
5,830,133.861 5,019,783.419
921,154,714 762081707
6. 771,288,575 5,781,8B65,126
1,268 1417
6.771,289,843 5.781,866,543
2283 {1.268)
6.771,287,580 5,781,865,275
{39.550,159) (50650261
6731,727.411 5731175014
Quantity
0,579,274 153002515 184044405
586733 16297346 2297965
1302 4 30 ITIRRT 16,937 4987
13,97 37 25,366,687 76491 455
229587 3852 Bod 1,444,205
%9.433.00 16137815 8512441
252,428,709 242460151
Quantity
M SE 4584819917 35 BROSIO
4460000 143170737 135989073
15088800 443556587 315674524
19785900 I7B6SSRT 173605964
1250635 23255606 2221289
- - 455,775,438
2500 TRICEIS 5
PGSR0 37HORPAZ?  3336R33077
5883315645 5029,751,976
Quantity
PABPENE 128173824 153002515
L9183 FASTART 15797345
483860 113978903 JHETIRSS
046314 £0358571 536068
475984 7745087 3857 F94
#L00 1R/CEE -
350,850.00 BOZIEIE  1B13/BIS

285,610,492 252,428,709
5850,133,861 5,014,783,419
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27.2  Asper nature of the Company’s marufacturing process and packing system there Is Ettle scope of having
packed finished cementin the stock Cement is orly packed &t the time of delivery by ucks [ the cement
Is packed in the bag when trucks amhie at the factory for taking defivery,

Particufars in respect of apening stock, sales and dlosing stock of fnished goods

Opening | Closing Sales for the year
Quantity (MT) Value Quantity (MT) Value Quantty(MT) Value
Vear2013-2004 | 020 1268 04O 2263 1204078 7990642511
Vea2012-2013 | 0200 1417] 020 1268 998,208 6829657132

27.2a Finished goods movement in Taka and quantitles
- 01 WEL'I!EI ﬂﬂ&!ﬂl# 01.07.20012 - Hﬂﬁ!ﬁli |

Particulars  Quantity | Amountin = Quantity = Amountin
 (Metric Ton) Taka umri:m]! Taka
Uuer ﬁg smk | 020 1,268 | 020 | 141 F
| Adi: Froduction during te period | 119407862 | 6771288575 92653441 | 5732351753
| Goods avallable for sale | 119407982 | 6771289843 92653451 .5?.3_33531_?;:_
| Less Cost of goods sod 118407842 | 5771,287560| 92653441 | 5732351,902
 Closing stock | 0.40 | 2,263 0.20 1,268.00

As per company's pelicy any bag of cement remained undelivered in the stock is considered as finished
product. Thas the above amaund represents the cost of Bleight] bags of cement remained unadelivered to
the trucks an 30 June #0114,

£7.3 Analysis of raw material consumption

2013-2014
'  Consumed for the year |
[ il i ]'m }‘mu—| | MiPs | Amownt |
| Oineer [T _ EIIJ_.E?E CIS300ES1S | AERIS | 12R173H24 | BO2BAGE 4BUG42503 |
| Gypsuam {MT) | SHB] | 162376 | 24183 | 7AS|483 | S2E7550 152016399
| Slag (1) | 1308 | ITTITEST | 3MEIME0 | 113STELE3 | 12517714 3573557 |
| Fiyash (41) | 13297 | 2530662 | 1046314 | 20358570 | 16069323 | 312667664 |
| lmestoreMr) | 229 | 38526 | 425984 | 77éR%T mr;-uz.ﬂ_ |9.a'.=a313
| Comentprndrgad | - - | 2500 | IBMOBIA
Biags s 0943 | 16137815 | 39086000 | 6027AI6 | 2265354300 359;192._42[
2012:2013

Particulars . OPErie | Clesing | Consumed for the year |
| MUPs | Amewt | MTPo | Ameunt | TR | Amowt |
| Cinker 1) | MEW  IBADMA | 30578 | 153002515 | 714520 3624A02401
| Lppsum (T} | 1SN0 | 228958 | SET | 16297345 | 4738 142621333
| Sag Ty | BMI | IRSET | e | ;eS| eS| 24554
| Fyash (M41) | 3065 | TEGIASE | 13207 | 253G08E2 | 79043 | 15533673
Lime stare MT) a4 | 148205 22% | 35268 11,734 1950440{
| Bukementprchese | - [ S i T
Bags Pee) 5682 | &512,¢-n | 9643 | 613715 | 18973120 326008548
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2013-2014 2012-2013
Taka Taka
274 Break up of raw materials purchase as per requirement of Para 8 5chedule X1, Part Il.of the
Companies Act 1954
2013-2014
| T
e Purchase in taka cmmmh w
mpot | lecl | Towl purchase
Clirier 4561053012 Z3760000 4584813012 4500642503  101% |
| Cypsum 43707 - | e300 1520065%8]  T06%)
| _Ske MASSRSGT| - | AAISEESOT|  IBISO6I 63K
| Fiyah H7BE5553 - | OWIERRSS3|  AI2EETEG4  102%
. Lh'e 50D - | 23755806, 23255606 19359313,  B3%|
L LErl*dr:g El'd 1870818 - . 1R70E1E. - 0% |
._Hdgs 3!8.53?4?{ _3{315}3?4??' Bﬂﬂlﬂ‘??d?l _1_I§I§J'ili
Total | 5457317616 425,998,028 5883315645 5850133861  99%
2012-2013
| Kt
ltems Purchase  la Cnsmptinn (5260
mport Lol | Tosl  purchise
| Oinker 3542810510 S0050000, 35928605100 3624802401  101% |
| Gypsum 135385023 13559690231 142621, 333 105% |
| Sleg. 31 55?-1 224 315674224 | 3%4,55-4 93% |
| Flyash 163647H63 9363100 I73E0SSE4 ISSGEETE 90%
| Lime stone _ - 22212856 222128% 19604408| 8%
Bags = 333633522 333EI302 | 326008548  OB% |

£7.5

| Total

| 4158116621 415850918 4573976539 4564007982  100%

The value of imported raw materly i caloulated on CIF basls.

Factory overhead
finrwsal milad & plonic
Bedding and urdform
BIWTA expense
Compliter actessanies
Comtribution To PR
Comeyance
Depreciation

Directors remuneration
Donation & subcristion
Electricity bill
Entertainament

Festhval bonus

Fued far motor vahicke and maotor oyche
Gratuity

[FSUrance prermium
Labour charge

1565712
351,165
251138
108,160
1607528
328450
£51,782,157
7,080,250
155,000
370,003,023
339,933
6,370,756
1317406
16,207,537
2141 h#6
15,257,463
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B0E,.195
SB4.063

2 6B5,758
216,254
954,032
203,702
259,065,609
6581317
256,000
315168725
4168619
5862541
1372671
18957214
1315903
16,593 553




Leave encashment

Audit & professionaliconsultancyfiegal fees
Lubricants, diesel oil, gear oil & fuel atc.
Medical expenses

Gift & presentation

Mahile chone bill

Office maintengnce

Rent & rates

Cutstation allewancehouse rentTA-DA
Chertime

Printing staticrenies schedula & forms
Quality testing expenses

Reristration, licence & renewals

Repalr & manienance- vehiche & mator oycle
Spare parts B store expenses
Telephonefax expenses

Trainirs & education

Travelling expense

Wagessalary and allowance

Dry dock expense of mother vessel

Other operating Income

Income from mother vesse! aperation
Fent from covered van

Bt from bl cardar

Rent from cargo vessels

Rent from truck

Administrative expanses
Advertisement & pubicity

Annual gengral mesting expenses
At B professionaliconsultancyfegal fees
Conubtful debt experse

Beddirg & unifarm

Board meeting attendarce fees
Computer sressorias

Cantritistion 1o FF

Canveyance

Carporate sacial resporaibility {C5R)
Denariation

Drectors ramuredation

Bonanian & Subscription
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2013 - 2014
Taka

B07.7E5
80399
16,041,319
735775
el i
427379
922308
£142354
4,320
£867.271
1055164
1471051
233,661
1277061
72753074
56,808
234590
18535954
B3.205644
74120348
921,154,714

23430000

23,430,000

7416086
1733083
2460125

18720
SRE000
144418
1153651
540576
54600
20433267
BRO0000
311,000

2012 - 2013
Taka

603884
201,240
17,108,070
E4.133
181764809
361,259
751,185
2151576
20656
3820373
1380560
1873464
106380
1431006
43,855,108
E&036
38720
1505092
SB544,155

762,081,707

3081B073
3052 185
O2E0a]
150,060
10BE 422
36,034,821

1251463
12132490
ZB0BES0
13940391
152090
885500
207307
H34.053
610710
11031 592
18495577
FE0DA00
852500



DSEACSEACDEL expense
Crtertalnment

Festival Bonus

Fuel for motor veinche and motor cycle
Gratuity

[Nsurance oremium o motor venicls
Internet

Labour charge

Leave encashiment

Gift & presentation

Muobite phane bl

Office mantenance

Fent and rates

(vertime

Frinting, statianeries, schedule & forms
Registration fcence & renawals
Repalr & maintenance- vehicle
Salary & allowances

Telephone/fax experses

Trairing & education

Travelling expense

Utility expense

Lubricarts/diesst ail for penerator

Selfing and distribution expenses
Arhesrtisement & publicity

BiS experse

BT oasg

CEF pepenses for expor

Audit & professionalfoonsultan:ylegal fees
Computer accessaries

Contribution 1o PF

Coneyance -osal

Corperate social responsibiity (£58)
Carmiage expense

Depreciation

Directors remuneration

Dinnation & sutscrintion
Entertainment

Festival bores

Fuel for motor vetvele and motor oycle
CralLety

Craup IrSurarce premidm

2013 2014
Taka
215392
3162330
3237721
526432
5,267,564
90,596
596032
1.220
5216560
4508241
778176
2585767
5742 850
102458
2059648
799828
827537
32800053
116802
82234
7,770,026
1,380,358
180714
114,206,125

73873339
491,708
1,491,500
3780660
351 850
48892
1.553063
4337 204
B50.000
8,724 500
16,171,566
7080250
2290580
BA74.126
4450534
3159021
B4T1524
275,292
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2012-2013
Taka
1,187,957
2.306,354
2820178
1.113,102
1777512
786653
730210
41,320
48555]
4555171
o4 234
2703213
5,776,264
107,239
1857376
1,096,659
1043548
20332619
6,122
16,000
2385516
1,254,850
162,202
112,012,132

78509129
S03846

1 3,500
407 240
89,000
24,215
1081.516
3067 164
HA0,000
11.218515
TBET B4
B.a81,317
878,150
5575,756
3,267.585
2025745
1,701,781
179033




31

32

Gift & pressntation

Insurance oremium

Labaur charges

Leaye encasnment

Mobibe phane bal-emplayes

Office maintenance

Rent and rates

Dutstation: sbowancerhouse rent/TA-0A
Ouertime

Frinting stationeries, schadule & farms
Premetioral expenses

Duality testing expenses

Registration, icence & renewals

Rapalr & malntenanca- vehicle & motor oule
Salary & allowances

Tetephone!fax expenses

Traveling expense

Mon operating Income

Sales of sorap

Other income

Realsediunreallsed proflt!foss) on Investmant on share
Frofit onsale of assets

Dividend on share

Financlal income/{expenses)
Interest income from FOR

et exchange gaindloss)

Barik charge & commission

Bank Interast

Income tax
Major companents of tax expenses

2013-2014
Taka

5881372

| 056695
B3] B34
BI4004
2645098
871,701
1135272
1876759
517407
1,192,187
2314213
571,165
2255899

| 823575
5051264
17443
4,551,009
231,034,362

7242479
10069691
18085651

4,581,758
40,979,579

327,562,132
(5,964.028)
(9,200495)

(378,728654)

(66,211,046)

2012-2013
Taka

155454
7873685
514681
2127533
0,850

61 481
445,245
524658

| BLE674
4532755
589,152

£ 204881
794,375
36,705,080
11,358
148363
200,077,789

9516771
6,259,756
(1,258,446}
3059732
825,750
18,503,603

343,336,668
81 855,71
(2,881 496)

(347,649.281)

74,671,363

In compbance with the requirements af para- 79 of BAS-1£: Income Tax, the major companants of tax

EXPENSES AE @iven helow;

Lurtent fax expenses
Deferred tax expenses

B0 M. | Cement Factory Ltd. Anaual Repoet 2014

154 544 248
BO0,T41 468

214,686,316

134882516
H0E354249

215,717,945



2013 - 2014 2012 -2013
Taka Taka

33.1 Reconciliation of tax expenses and product of accounting profit

in compliance with tha reguirements of para-31 (b} of BAS-12: Income Taw, the reconcliation of tax
expensas and product of accounting profits are given below;

Accaunting peofin for the year Haa075779 aa1.086606
Less shate of profit of equlny-accounted invesiess 21856322 0498551

B67.419,457 871,587,655
Tax e accounting prafins @27 50% 230540351 239586605
Aedf{deduce) : 10% redbate for dividend paid {23854.035) (23968661

Addidedut  effects of tax rate change

Aodideduct: effects of paramanent difference

Addidedct : affects of priar year's adjusiments - -

Tax expenses for the year 214,686,316 215,717,945

34 Share of profit from associates (from note 6)
Share of loss of Crown Power Ceneration Limized {CPGLY

Shere of bass of Crowa Cement Concrete and Bulding Products Limited ICCCERL) - (500,000

Share of loss of Crown Transpartation & Logistics Limited (CTLLY -

Share of profit of Crown Mariners Limited (CHL) 21556322 9,598,351
21,656,322 9,498,951

&hare of profit or Ioss from investment in associates are not considerad in computation of current tax
experse, Since, these are separate entities having separate Taxpayer identification Number [TIN) and
being taxed separately. Income from investment in 2ssociates wikl be taken fto account wpon receipt of
the cividend from respectie entities,

35 Earnings per share (BAS - 33)

Bask earmangs per share

Earning attributable 1o ardinary shareholders 674300464 BR5I6RELS
Weighted average numoer of ordinary shases (caodationas beow) 148500000 148500000
Earnings Per Share {restated) 454 448

Cakculation of wetghted average number of ordinary shares outstandng during the period from July
2013 10 June 2014 is given beiow:

mﬂmlﬂmm No.of shares

Nature of Share Number of shares  period outstanding outstanding
| Rongs [T ] T | MR osagia | apizaon
| Ordinary shares | 148,500,000 | 01072003 030062014 ﬂﬁb 1485000001 148,500,000
Total | 1485500000 ! 148,500,000, 148,500,000
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36

37
EFA |

37.2

373

374

375

376

Eri

31.8

38

2013- 2074

Taka
Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
Met assets (total assets - intangihie aasets - total fabifties)  S675471,007
Number af ardinary sharss 148,500,000
Net asset vajue (NAV) per share iB.22

Notes to the statement of cash flows

20nz- 2013
Taka

5.594,400,357
148,500,000
37.67

The statemant of cash flows shows how the Compamy's cash and bank balances changed during the

year through infiows and outflows,
Cash received from customers

Gross cash recehved from customers arrived-at after adjusting accounts receivables with revenue for

the year
Cash paid to suppliers

Cash peid to varicus suppders arrived after adjusting of raw materials and consumpticn cost of spare

parts consumed with creditors for trade supplies,
Cash paid for operating expenses

(Cash peid for operating expenses arrived at after adjusting non-tash items and creditors for revenue

EXpEMSes.

Income tax pakd

During the year the Company paid Tk.329,090, 758 a5 advante NCome tax
Purchase of of property, plant & equipment

Imvestmenit relate 1o outflows of cash and cash equivalents for fiked assets
Dividend paid

I the year 201 3-2014, the Company paid dividend of Tk.552,345,163

Short term loan recejved

The item represents net increase of short term loan-from various banks amounting to Tk 1656 708,757

Contingent liabilities/off balance sheet items

Lommitments b349,074 BE6

Contingent lizbilities 171073614
B10,148,498

Commitments:

Letter of credit

Eastern Bank Limited 1,864 800

The Hangkong And Shanghai Banking Carporation Limited 35¢,396819

Urie Bank Limited BaBT4471

famuna dank Limited 179650839

Prime Bank Limited 2554 000

Standard chartered bank 165490672

IFIC Bark Limited 15002035
639,074,886
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B07.461,790
79,294 453
686,756,243

2407810
13681381¢
130358468

27,881,700

607,461,790



2013 . 2014 2012 -2013

Taka Taka
38.2 Contingent liabilities:

Bank puarantes;

One Bank Limited 2533106 2333106
Prime Ban Limited 35216302 10941316
Tax & VAT clalm:

a) {lalm of VAT Authority for declared wastage percentage

relating to tha diffarent financial years againct which varrious.

wilt petitlons have been filed by the company before the B5820031 BEA20.03]

Hon'ble High Court Bhaka

B) Excess claim of tax authoelty regarding interest and tax
Fabeity cver income tax labllity provided for by the company
as per the retum submitied for the respective years which B7.504.114
remains sl juditia upta reparting date,
171,073,613 79,294,453

39 Financlal risk management

{a) Credit risk

Cresgit risk 15 the risk that one party to a financial instrumeant wiould causs a firangial loss for the ather
party by failing wo discharge an obligation. [t manly comprises of recelvables fram custamer, trade and
investment securities. To alleviate the oraedit risk agamst trade recevable the Compary has & policy to
abtain securty instruments from customens.,

(b} Liquidity risk

Liquldity risk (s the risk that the Company might encounter difficulty In meeting the obligations
associated with its financlal labilities that have to be settled by deltveling cash ar another financial
assats o fabilities. The Company's approach 10 managing liguidkty i 1o ensure that it wil always have
sufficient liquidit assets to meet its liabllities when due. under both nomal and stressed conditions,
wi IOt incueing unacceptable losses or risking damage to Company's reputations

More than
' months (Taka) and less
than 5 years
Trade payables 22373082 =
Other payables 12145677 -
Bank averdraft 231,859853 -
Shiort term loan from banks 851,095,102 5
| Long term jozn from bank . 243787000 546349358
 As of 30 june 2014 3710434764 = 946,349,388
(C) Market risk

Market risk s defined as the rick that the fair value or future cash flows of a financia! instrument will
fluctuate because of Changes in market prices. The abjective of marken risk managemeant (s o manage
and control risk exposires within acceptable parameters while optimizing the return Market risk
comprises three types of rsxs: Currercy Risk, interest Rate Risk and Commodity Risk.
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i) Foreign currency risk

Thee eisk that the fair vaie of future cash flows of a Tinancat irstument might Thcluate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates, The Company is exposed 1o currency rsk on its cerlain shoart and
Iongg term debits and purchases that are denominated in forsign ourrencies.

Exposiure to currency risk of the Company &t reparting date are as follows,

R _ Balance at 30 june 20704
. Particulars . uso | BOT
Assets
Frime Bank [ER) 42 B0 3,334,189
The State Bank of India [ERC) B3,785 6,543,582
Liability
Term Loan-H5EC | 19002500 | 1484095250
o  Belance at 30 June 2074
. Poartulrs | U0 | BOT
Cther payeble [Alunited Maritime business [Pyt [td} 262523 20,503,060
Commitment & contingencies
Frime Bank Limitad 1358365 10808307
The Hongkang and Shanghal Banking Corporatizn Limited 5443374 425127511
Eastern Bank Limited £ 3R7 937 342 697841
Jamuna Bank Limited 2,327 838 181,804,108
Shihiakal tslami Bank Limited 415800 324734960
I=IC Bank Limited 923525 72127303
One Bank Limited B,121,245 478065320
Lnited Commercial Bank Limited 2034415 1635738390
|Comersionrate e [ 7810
ii} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arse from the fuctuation of Interest rate asslgred with certain financlal asset o
ligbilities, Exposure to interest risk of the Company at the reporting dates (s only redated with
outstanding offshoee loanfcommitment having LIBOR plus interest rate

iif} Commaodity risk

Commodity risk asrises from fluctuation of value of commodity in tesms of price, guantity, cost and
poiitical condition of the market from or to which the Company procure or sell product respectively,
Exposure to commodity risk of the Compary st the reporting date may not be significant
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40 Related parties transactions

2013-2014 2012-2013
Taka Taka

During the year, the Company carmied out a number of transections with related parties within the
reormal course of busness. The name of the related parties and nature of these transacticns have been
set outin accordance with the prowisions of BAS 24: Related Party Disclosure,

Rdickbasects

Name of Parties

Md lahangir Alam

Relationship  Natureof Transactions  Transanction Value

Chairman

Ahai Md. Khabinsddin Mefla - Managing Director

Md. Alamgir Kahir

Malla Mohammad Mainu

Pt Mizanke Ranman Malia

A Rokeya Hegum
- Hs:l.ﬂmaséhlnul
A Md, Abdur Rouf

Ml Asrafuzzaman

Md Abdul Ahad

Institution:
Crowm Power

| Generation Lid

| Crown Poymer
Bagging Ld,

Crown Mariness L1d

| Crown Cement Trading

Companiy

Crown Cement Concrete
ard Building Products Ltd,

| Crown T'mqu'ﬁtiﬁng

| LogstissLid
GPH Ispat Lt

Additicnal Managing
Cirectar

Additicnal Managing

Directar

Directar

| Shareholder of the
_ Errtit_j._'
| Director

Sharehalder of the
_emiI'_.'

| Sharholder of the

entity

| Shareholder of the
| entity

Aespciate Lompany

Associate Lompany

Associate Company
A partnership fim

Assncizte Company

Associate Company

| Commen directors

Cash dividend board
| mesting attendance

| 87829730 98092875

[ 'reeg. & .rg;nune.mim |

Cash dividend board

meeting attendance |

79704000 | 98350000

fees B remuneration
Cash dividend board

 meeting attendance |

590649720 65476442

| fees & remuneration |
| Cash dividend board |

meeting attendance |

445652250( 49106317

| Tees & remuneration
| Cash dividend board

| mecting attendance. |
[1mes St e,

Cash dividend
Cash dividend
Cash dividend

Cash dividend

(.zsh dividend

| For providing related |

SETyiCE

| For providing related |

| senvice

For pru'.lidi'ng related

| Service
| For providing related
SETWICE
For providing related
| sarvice

For providing related

LEfVE
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37492000 42525000

I7AZ2000 | 42525000

| 26255400 29,767,500

9355500 10631.250 '
9,355,500 10631250

7454400 8505000 |

20442418 31236342 |
ZESAFR076 520911073

537 ATGAS] 481641593

B.500 14455
(11884813127 763765

300,422,790 271533100




2013-2014 2012 -2013
Taka Taka

41 Number of employees
Thi compary Rad 70 permanent emplovees as at june 30, 20714 (2C12.702) and a varying number-of

seasional and temporary workers as requined, Al permanent employees recelve 1o remuneration in
excess of Tk 36,000 per annim per employee:

Duwing the year the company pald as splaries, wages and benefits

(hote - 27105, 2800 and 30.00) tatal Tk, 146,518,358

Directors emolument

Salary & benefits 23,760,500 20,962,634
42 Capacity and production

Instalied capacity in matric tons (00 days basis) 1,740,000 1,740,000

Actua production in metrlc tons-guring e year 1184075 028534

% of capacity utilization 68.63% 53.25%

43 Number of Board Meetings held during the year 2013-2074

" | Dateofmeeting  No. of directors attended

[ o 2013-2014 20122013 2013-2014 20122013
15t Quiarter 12412 | 7 :
Foep13 | cbble |

| 15-5ep-12
| 2nd Quarter | 26-0ct13 | 20-0ct-12 |
T-hav-13 | 15-Now-12

| | 30Nou-13 | 30.Dec 12 |
3rd Quarter |_25jen14 | 2813 |
b | BMa-14 | 24Mar-13 |
4th Quarter | S-Ap-14 | 27-Apr-13 |
| 30-Ape-14 | 25-May-13

17-May-14
21un-14 | 2213 :

O

L PR | Sk | S S | T R
© TR e e O OO

44 Subsequent events

Tre Board of Directors in thelr meeting hekd on 25 Cctober 2014 have recommended cash dividersd &
3% |2 Taka 3 (three) per shaee of Taka 10 each aggregating to Taka 4% 500000 for the year erdad
30 Jure 2014 auivact tooapproval of the sharehoiders'in the Annual General Meeting scheduled 12 be
hield on 24 December 200 4. The financial statermants for the year ended 30 June 2014 do not include
the effect of the cash dividend which will be accounted for In the period when shareholders” rght 1o
ferefve payment Is established

Trere are no ather events identified after the reporting date wheh require adiustments of dsclosurein
these accoimpanying financlal statements,

Alhaj Md. Khabiruddin Malla Hd./&«phéi Kabir Md. Mozharul Islam, FCS
Managing Clirector Lompany Secretary
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M. 1. CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

Registensd Office: West Mukterpar, Munshigon]
Head Office: Hevse # 1 8 7, Road # 95, Block # CEN (AL Morth fverwse Gukshan# 2 Chaka- 1212

PROXY FORM

Shareholders B0 AJC No. No. of Shares held

s
EHf {MEBIESEE .-, .1 veveveemessosmerssmssssren o o e a1 s 554 450548 R 14154 RS £ 1R s

of a5 myfour proxy 1o attend and vote for mefus
and an mylour behalf at the 20t Annual General Meeting 1o be held on Wednesday the 24th December #0714 at
11530 am at the Factory Premises, West MukTerpur, Munshigon] and a1 any akaumment thereof and the pal may be

Taken in cansequence thesenf.
A< withress myfour hand this.......... Hay of 2014,
Revenue
[Sigrature of the Frosy) (Signatire of the Sharchalder)
B0 Account No

Note; The oroxy form duly completed must be deposited at the Company's Head Office not |ater than 48 houwrs before
the time fixed for the meeting, otherwise the proxy formwill not be accepted.

Authorized Signature
M. I. Cement Factory Ltd.

M. 1. CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

1wl heveby recand myaun fresende at the 20th Annual General Mesting of the Company o 24 th Decermber 2014 at the
Factery Premises, west Mukterpur, Musshigan],

Marne of SharaholderProxy, ;i ; B R e
BO Account Mo holdng of i
Crcinany shares of M. L Cament Factary Limited,

Slgnatuse \Verfied

i Signature of Shareholder(s)

1, Piease raate: that AGM cait only be atiencksd by the honceahle shaneshcider of prapedy constituted prowy,
2. Pleasa fpesent this S0 al the Reception Desk,



CROWN T CEMENT

FOR 0L

M. L. CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

House # 1 &7, Road # 95, Block # CEN{A), Gulshan North Avenue, Gulshan # 2, Dhaka- 1212
Tel 4880-2-9852631, 4652633-4, 9852636, 9852641, Fax: +8B0-2-5852643
E-mail info@crowncement.com, Web | wwi.crowncement.com i

Factory ; West Mukterpur, Munshigon
Te|:880-2:7648077, Fax ; BB0-2-7648070




